Public Document Pack

HRE CITY OF
LGcoln

COUNCIL

PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Thursday, 12 July 2018 6.00 pm Committee Room 1, City Hall

Membership: Councillors Gary Hewson (Chair), Helena Mair (Vice-Chair),

Thomas Dyer, Ronald Hills, Lucinda Preston, Pat Vaughan,
Loraine Woolley, Laura McWilliams, Sue Burke and Ric Metcalfe

Substitute member(s):  Councillors Chris Burke

Officers attending: Democratic Services, Jaclyn Gibson, Pat Jukes, Simon Walters,

Alison Hewson, Claire Moses, Martin Walmsley, Jess Cullen,
Daren Turner and Yvonne Fox

AGENDA
SECTION A Page(s)

1. Confirmation of Minutes - 24 May 2018 3-10
2. Confirmation of Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee Minutes - 18 June 11-12

2018
3. Declarations of Interest

Please note that, in accordance with the Members' Code of Conduct,

when declaring interests members must disclose the existence and

nature of the interest, and whether it is a disclosable pecuniary interest

(DPI) or personal and/or pecuniary.
4. Portfolio Holder under Scrutiny

(a) Portfolio Performance Overview 13-28

(b) Portfolio Under Scrutiny Session - Our People and Resources 29 -54
5. Thematic Review - Homelessness 55 - 58
6. Christmas Market Outturn Report 2017 59 - 66
7. Work Programme for 2018/19 - Update 67 -78



This page is intentionally blank.



ltem No. 1

Performance Scrutiny Committee 24 May 2018

Present: Councillor Gary Hewson (in the Chair),
Councillor Helena Mair, Councillor Thomas Dyer,
Councillor Ronald Hills, Councillor Lucinda Preston,
Councillor Pat Vaughan, Councillor Loraine Woolley,
Councillor Laura McWilliams and Councillor Sue Burke

Apologies for Absence: None.

1. Confirmation of Minutes - 29 March 2018

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 29 March 2018 be
confirmed.

2. Declarations of Interest

Councillor Pat Vaughan declared a Personal Interest with regard to the agenda
item titled 'Q4 2017-2018 Operational Performance Report'.

Reason: His daughter worked in the Benefits department at the City of Lincoln
Council.

Councillor Pat Vaughan declared a Personal Interest with regard to the agenda
item titled 'Financial Performance - Outturn: 2017-18'.

Reason: His Granddaughter worked in the Finance department at the City of
Lincoln Council.

3. Central Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee/ Local Plan Annual
Report 2017/18

Toby Forbes Turner, Principle Planning Policy Officer:-

a. presented a report which detailed the work undertaken by the Central
Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee (CLJSPC) from April 15t
2017 through to 31st March 2018

b. stated that the Central Lincolnshire Local Plan was formally adopted at the
24" April 2017 CLJSPC (Central Lincolnshire Joint Strategic Planning
Committee) meeting

c. explained that The Local Plan set out the planning policies for Central
Lincolnshire (including the City) and this involved allocating parcels of land
for development as well as identifying land which should be protected from
development

d. highlighted that The Plan included a set of 57 policies which guided
decision makers i.e. Planning Committee on future planning applications
for the City

e. invited members’ questions and comments.



Question: Who had taken over from Carillion on the Eastern Bypass?
Response: The subcontractors had been getting more involved in the work
however there was currently a delay of 6 months. handover to a new contractor
had taken place.

Question: With regards to new house builds, could land be bought in West
Lindsey?

Response: Yes the city council can buy land in another district to provide
housing, but the preference remains for sites within the boundaries.

Question: Would it be possible to update members at planning on application of
policies within the local plan?

Response: There was only a certain amount of time in each committee but
regular updates on the local plan could be provided.

Question: Did officers meet with applicants to explain the impacts that the local
plan could have on their application?

Response: Officers could provide advice to applicants, where requested/sought.

Question: With regards to dwellings in the Five Year Land Supply Report, did it
involve the WGC? (Western Growth Corridor)

Response: Yes it would involve parts of the WGC.

RESOLVED that:
1. The figures for the Local Plan be circulated to members by officers.
2. The content of the report be noted.

Confirmation of Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee Minutes

RESOLVED that the Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee minutes of 19 March be
confirmed.

Financial Performance: Qutturn 2017/18

Rob Baxter, Financial Services Manager:

a) presented a report detailing the provisional financial outturn position on
the Council’s revenue and capital budgets for 2018/19 including:

The General Fund
Housing Revenue Account
Housing Repairs Service
Capital Programmes

b) provided members with a summary of actual income and expenditure
compared to the revised budget and how any surpluses had been
allocated to reserves



6.

c) gave details of variances to the General Fund forecast, Housing
Revenue Accounts, Housing Repairs Service and Capital programmes
as detailed within the appendices to the report

d) explained that the financial performance quarterly monitoring report for
the third quarter had predicted an underspend against the revised
budget (exclusive of approved carry forwards) of £457,620 as outlined
in 3.2 of the report

e) invited members’ questions and comments.

Question: The underspend for the General Fund appeared to be a third of the
overall budget. How much would be carried forward as a deferred payment?

Response: The whole of the underspend would be spent in the future on other
projects.

Question: with regards to staff training, why hadn’t the £50,000 been spent in the
last year?

Response: There had been a new training initiative that had been introduced last

year which would be rolled out this year so that money would be spent in this
financial year.

Question: Did the City of Lincoln Council own Broadgate Car Park?
Response: Yes.

Question: With regards to reference within the report to the noise monitoring
equipment, what did it mean?

Response: It was the noise monitoring device that was used by the Anti-Social
Behaviour Team. The monitoring system was old and had been replaced.

RESOLVED that:

1. The provisional 2017/18 financial outturn for the General Fund, Housing
Revenue Account, Housing Repairs Service and Capital Programmes as
set out in 3 — 7, and in particular the reasons for any variances be noted

2. The proposed transfer to General Fund earmarked reserves in paragraph
3.6, 38, 3.9 and 3.11, prior to reporting to the Executive be noted

3. The proposed transfer to HRA earmarked reserves in paragraph 4.4 be
noted

4. The financial changes to both the General Investment Programme and the
Housing Investment Programme (paragraphs 7.3, 7.4 and 7.10) that were
above the 10% budget variance limit delegated to the Chief Finance
Officer be noted.

Q4 2017-18 Operational Performance Report

Pat Jukes, Corporate Policy Business Manager:

5



a) presented a report on the operational performance under quarter 4 of the
financial year 2017/18 (from December 2017 to March 2018)

b) explained that the regular monitoring of the Council’'s operational
performance was a key component of the Local Performance Management
Framework

c) detailed the key headlines from the four corporate measures:
Sickness — split by long and short term

Corporate complaints including Ombudsman rulings
Employee FTE headcount, vacancies and turnover
Staff appraisals completed

d) referred to Appendix A which detailed all measures by individual
directorate grouping with annual and quarterly measures split separately

e) invited members’ questions and comments.

Question: Had the shortage in staff in DHR been noted and why was the level of
recruitment so low?

Response: In DHR, whilst there were currently 28 vacancies, some of these were
held for a variety of planned reasons.

The breakdown of the vacancies was as follows:

e 4 posts which were removed from the establishment but weren’t taken off
the list of posts

e 8 posts were held pending review of the service area

e 5 posts had dropped from full time to part time/flexible working, with the
vacant hours not recruited to - representing a cumulative impact

e 5 were currently in recruitment

e 4 were recruited to but weren’t showing that they had been

e The remaining posts were a mixture of maternity leave etc and in some
cases were being covered by agency staff (ie a person in post, but as it
wasn’t a permanent recruitment the post still showed as a vacancy)Stress
and anxiety were some of the main key reasons for the sickness but
interestingly there was no apparent link between the level of vacancies
and the level of sickness within the teams

Question: How were staff being supported?

Response: Simon Walters had spent some time in the homelessness team (a
team that had suffered a lot of sickness) and found that they worked very well
together as a team so they were able to support each other. However,
management were acutely aware of the pressures and were putting additional
staff resources in place

Question: Did the Council reduce contracted hours due to staff returning from
sickness?

Response: Some hours were reduced due to maternity and for short periods
during return to work phases. In some cases employees have agreed to reduce
their contract work hours, and this has been agreed where the service allows

6



Question: With regards to business rates, had the Council received many
appeals?

Response: None had been received yet however it was taking longer for them to
come through.

Question: What was the response time for Customer services when dealing with
customers through email/telephone?

Response: The information wasn’t available to hand however customer services
did gather it. It was highlighted that there needed to be a more uniform approach
when gathering this information as it's gathered differently in every department.
Jo Crookes had been looking email responses and agreeing an appropriate time.

Question: What responsibility did the Council have for the bus station information
desk?

Response: Originally it was going to be a second service access point for
members of the public to use instead of going to City Hall. The options were
being reviewed going forward with the following 3 options:
1. It would become a Customer Services desk full time
2. A new contract would come in force to operate the bus station and the new
operator could utilise the desk
3. To lease the front desk as part of the upstairs office space

Question: How many people paid for early collection of their green waste?

Response: Payments went up towards the end of the period that the payments
were due.

RESOLVED that:

1. Simon Walters would provide Performance Scrutiny members with figures
related to maternity hours and why there had been a reduction

2. The content of the report and comments made by members be noted
3. The report be referred to Executive to ensure relevant portfolio holders
placed a local focus on those highlighted areas showing deteriorating

performance.

7. Treasury Management Stewardship and Actual Prudential Indicators Report
2017/18 (Outturn)

Rob Baxter, Financial Services Manager:

a. presented a report covering the treasury management activities and the
actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2017/18

b. advised that the annual Treasury Management stewardship report was
a requirement of the Council’s reporting procedures due to regulations
issued under the Local Government Act 2003

c. gave a summary of performance against the Treasury Management

Strategy
5



d. invited members' questions and comments.

Question: With regards to the money that the Council recuperated, was it used
to pay off the debts?

Response: The money would contribute towards the Car Park etc. however
that could be short/long term.

RESOLVED that:
1. The actual prudential indicators contained within Appendices A and B of
the report be noted and referred to Executive for review prior to

recommending to Council for approval

2. The Annual Treasury Management report for 2017/18 be noted and
referred to Executive for review.

Strategic Plan Progress - Outturn 2017-18

Rob Baxter, Financial Services Manager:

a) presented a report updating members on strategic projects against their
milestones for the final quarter of 2017/18

b) advised that of the 16 strategic projects monitored, 14 projects were on
track in terms of their physical and financial milestones and risk profiles, of
these a further 2 projects had been completed and were awaiting a Post
Implementation Review to be submitted and signed off

c) stated that there were no projects currently off track in all three areas of
monitoring as detailed in paragraph 2.3 of the report

d) reported that 3 new projects had been reviewed and recommended to the
Executive for approval in the final quarter

e) updated members on the following two mega projects:

e \Western Growth Corridor
e Transport Hub

f) highlighted the work of the Section 106 Group and annual ongoing projects
at paragraph 6 of the report

g) invited members’ questions and comments.
Question: When would the report for the Western Growth Corridor be done?
Response: The Council was still in the consultation stage for the WGC, however
a Member Development session would still be going ahead. Rob agreed that he
would find out more details.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Performance Targets for 2018/1 98




10.

Pat Jukes, Corporate Policy Business Manager:

a) presented the report on the draft targets for the agreed sub set of Strategic
Measures for information before initial reporting in Q1 2018/19

b) explained that the performance targets were introduced in 2016/17, but
needed reviewing each year to reflect changes in the market place as well
as current outturn achievements. This report proposed a number of
considered changes to targets for the new year

c) highlighted that since 2013, trended performance had been reported to
Members via a set of ¢70 measures defined as the key operational
measures

d) outlined the final table of proposed targets and red alerts detailed in
Appendix A of the report

e) invited members’ questions and comments.
Question: Why had the overall percentage utilisation of the car parks gone down?

Response: There were 1,000 new spaces made available and it would take time
for them to fill up.

RESOLVED that the report be noted.

Strategic Risk Register - Quarterly Review

Rob Baxter, Financial Services Manager:

a) presented the report ‘Strategic Risk Register — Quarterly Review’ and
provided members with the revised Strategic Risk Register as at the end of
the fourth quarter 2017-18

b) advised that the Strategic Risk Register was developed under the risk
management approach of ‘risk appetite’, which was last presented to
Members in February 2018 and contained seven strategic risks

c) highlighted that since it was last reported in August 2017, the Strategic
Risks Register had been reviewed and updated

d) further highlighted that the updated Register contained seven strategic
risks an outlined in Appendix A of the report

e) updated members on the key movements which were outlined as follows:-

e Engaging with Strategic Partners, staff and stakeholders to deliver
the Vision 2020.

e To ensure compliance with statutory duties and appropriate
governance arrangements were in place.

e Meeting the emerging changes required in the Councils culture,
behaviour and skills to support the delivery of the Council’s Vision
2020 and the transformational journey to a “performance culture”.

9



f)

g9)

identified the risk implications as outlined in 6.1 of the report

invited members’ questions and comments.

RESOLVED that the report be noted by the Performance Scrutiny Committee.

11. Work Programme 2018/19

The Democratic Services Officer:

a)

b)

d)

presented the Performance Scrutiny Work Programme for 2018/19
(Appendix A)

advised that the work programme for the Performance Scrutiny Committee
was put forward annually for approval by Council; the work programme
was then regularly updated throughout the year in consultation with the
Performance Scrutiny Committee and its chair

reported that items had been scheduled in accordance with the existing
work programme and officers’ guidance regarding the meetings at which
the most up-to-date information could be reported to the committee; the
work programme also included the list of portfolio holders under scrutiny

requested any relevant comments or changes to the proposed work
programme for 2018/19.

RESOLVED that the work programme 2018/19 as detailed at Appendix A to the
report be noted, subject to the inclusion of:

A thematic review of sickness absence in July 2018 to coincide with the
Portfolio Holder under Scrutiny for Our People and Resources

A thematic review of Homelessness in August/October 2018. A date would
be confirmed at the next meeting by Yvonne Fox.

A thematic review of the Western Growth Corridor (WGC) in October to
coincide with the Portfolio under Scrutiny for Economic Growth.

10



[tem No. 2

Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee 18 June 2018

Present: Councillor Gary Hewson (in the Chair),
Councillor Pat Vaughan, Councillor Bob Bushell,
Councillor Loraine Woolley, Councillor Alan Briggs and
Councillor Edmund Strengiel

Apologies for Absence: Chris Morton

1. Confirmation of Minutes - 19 March 2018

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held 19 March 2018 be confirmed.

2. Matters Arising

Members asked if the following actions had been followed up and completed:-

1. Statistics on rent arrears for the past year — Yvonne agreed to circulate
this information to all members following the meeting.

2. Comparison of this year's performance targets — Yvonne agreed to
circulate this information to members following the meeting.

3. The roles and responsibilities of a Housing Officer — Yvonne confirmed
that it had been added to the work programme for August 2018

4. People parking on grass verges — Yvonne Fox had liaised with Andrew
McNeil and the costs were likely to be excessive and there were concerns
that funding would not be available. Nevertheless, sites were being costed

up.

5. Welton Gardens Housing Completion — Work had been put back slightly
due to bad weather at the start of the year. The new completion date had
been set for mid-September but the handover would be phased over a 6
week period so that the properties could be filled gradually.

3. Declarations of Interest

No declarations of interest were received.

4, Quarter 4 2017/18 - Performance Summary

Yvonne Fox, Assistant Director for Housing:

a) presented the Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee with an end of quarter
report on performance indicators for the fourth quarter of year 2017/18
(January 2018 — March 2018)

b) stated that from April 2010, all social landlords were required to have local
offers in place alongside the national standards as set out in the new
Regulatory Framework for Social Housing. The Framework was amended
with effect from April 2012 but the principles remained the same.

11



c) advised that of the 23 measures 12 were on or exceeding targets for the
year and 11 had not met the targets set.

d) referred to appendix A of the report and highlighted the areas where there
had been overall improvement including:

Percentage of all emergency repairs carried out within time limits
Tenant satisfaction with repairs

Councillor enquiries replied to within the timescale

Percentage of ASB cases closed that were resolved

e) highlighted areas that had not achieved their target and explained the
reason for this:

Percentage of rent collected as a percentage of rent due
Average re-let period

Percentage of offers accepted first time

Percentage of complaints replied to within 10 working days

f) invited committees questions and comments

Question: On 8.2 of the report, nothing appeared after ‘particular areas to
highlight are:’, what was the reason for this?

Response: Yvonne explained that it was a mistake made on the report and
assured that it would be changed and re-circulated to members.

Question: Can people without a bank account be offered a Council property?

Response: The individual would need a bank account of some sort to be able to
pay their rent as the Council had now become a cashless workplace.

Question: How many times was an allocation of a property allowed to be refused
by the tenant?

Response: It varied depending on the band of the property. For Band 1 it was
once, band 2, twice and bands 3 and 4, three times. If they hit the limit of refusal,
the tenant could potentially be suspended for between 6 and 12 months.

LTP Matters

None.

Work Programme 2018/19

The Democratic Services Officer:

a. presented the work programme for the Housing Scrutiny Sub Committee
for 2018/19 as detailed at Appendix A of the report.

b. advised that this was an opportunity for the committee to suggest other
items to be included within the work programme.

RESOLVED that the work programme be noted
12



cfp

N

CITY OF
In

Linco
COUNCIL

Portfolio
Performance
Overview

Corporate Management &

Customer Services
- 12t July 2018

Pat Jukes, Business Manager
- Corporate Policy

Together, let’s deliver
Lincoln’s ambitious future




Vi

Corporate Management & Customer
Services

This overview will cover:
« Contextual data

« Performance measures from the key basket of
strategic measures

« Benchmarking information from LG Inform

Together, let’s deliver h

Lincoln’s ambitious future www.lincoln.gov.uk

CITY OF
@ Lincoln
COUNCIL




qaT

Contextual information on the corporate
environment in City of Lincoln Councill

The number of staff (FTE) working for the council has
decreased from 590.9 in 2016/17 to 557.9 in 2017/18

As part of the Business Rate (plus an average of 20.5 apprentices)
Pilot in 2018/19, of the new

growth - the Council will receive
60%, with 40% going to
Lincolnshire County Council.
(This is on top of existing levels)

The percentage of staff turnover
at the end of Q4 was 2.83%. In
comparison to the previous
quarter, this has increased by
0.48%.

In 2017/18 we
overachieved our Towards
Financial Sustainability
(TFS) target by £30,390

We had 73 active projects in Vision 2020
in 2017/18 and going forward into
2018/19 we will have over 60 active
projects

Fmanmal — The General Fund Apprenticeships — During 2017/18,
this year has a net budget we had 46 new apprentices on the
requirement of £14.3m which is bp

up from the £10.4m in 2017/18 programme all of which completed

incoln

COUNCIL Lincoln’s ambitious future o o www.lincoln.gov.uk

Data is from the latest PHE on-line data set (2016) and is for 2013-15 unless stated otherwise

@ L CITYOF Together, let’s deliver h




9T

Latest population estimates

ESTIMATED POPULATION OF LINCOLN BY AGE BREAKDOWN

16.0% £

14.0%

12.0% .

N
10.0% S SR ® © S ES
QEEE ﬁ £ Ng ﬁ RO Qe 'E'El.r'! ﬁ gq x4 ﬁﬁ
8.0% 3 x5 gt B3 g "¢ Ge X3 o~ 2~ B3 £% =% _x
PR T [ s 5° B B3 88 o

6.0% < T T RmY ®M e® e=
Y ST S

2o I I I I I I I I I I I rr

2.0%

0.0%

H 2.6%

Age0- Aged Aged Aged Aged Aged Aged Aged Aged Aged Aged Aged Aged Aged Aged Aged Aged Aged
4 59 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-29 30-34 35-39 40-44 45-49 50-54 55-59 60-64 65-69 70-74 75-79 80-84 85+

m Lincoln Age Percentage England Percentage

Figure 3 - ONS (2017) Mid 2017 Population Estimates -

https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforuke
nglandandwalesscotlandondnorthernireland

Our biggest age range is around the 15-29 bracket, due to the
impact of the universities in the city

Z(Z’glg\I%IL Lincoln’s ambitious future www.lincoln.gov.uk

@ L CITYOF Together, let’s deliver h




LT

Latest population splits

POPULATION OF LINCOLN BY GENDER

There were an estimated
48,859 males in Lincoln in
2017.

There were an estimated
49 579 females in Lincoln in
— 2017.

L This was an increase of just 97
when compared to 2016.

This was an increase of 546
when compared to 2016.

Figure 2 — ONS 2018 -
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforukenglan

dandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland

The gap between the number of males and females is reducing — it
now stands at 720, down from 1,169 in 2016

Together, let’s deliver h

Lincoln
@ HEU™ | Lincoln’s ambitious future www.lincoln.gov.uk




8T

Lincoln population per square kilometre

NUMBER OF PEOPLE PER SQUARE KILOMETRE VS OUR NEAREST NEIGHBOURS

S @
7o} o~ m
] [T [Tp]
4000 g ¥ 5 S = @ o=
3500 RIS "
3000 - v 3z °
2500 8 0 g o)
2000 ~ on 2 ~ = o
1500 w R @ &
1000 & v W
500 — I I
¢ m m R
A% 2 x A I Q 2 O > & O & ) e OO &
R A T - N UG g R
& Q@' ‘b‘@ %\} Q’\ .“{\ (\,k' ,‘)Q ¢;"® < \> oﬂ(" Q\‘b" 0\}(" \Q éo
-\ > &) @ v\\@ $ (D\
X, & O
& 2
o o

Figure 5 - ONS (2017) Mid 2017 Population Estimates -
https://www.ons.qov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/populationandmigration/populationestimates/datasets/populationestimatesforuke

nglandandwalesscotlandandnorthernireland

Lincoln has the sixth highest density of population per square
kilometre when compared to our nearest neighbours

Together, let’s deliver h

Lincoln
@ HEU™ | Lincoln’s ambitious future www.lincoln.gov.uk




6T

Sickness comparison — year on year

Cumulative sickness trends per FTE - CoLC (Exc apprentices figures)

o
<
on
-

16

13.62

14

11.63
11.52

12

0
™~
o
—

on
& B
o o
10
© ~
0 N
0
0
© <
S ™
~ 0
L —
)
o) — —
9 e o =
~ ™ < ™
I I N I

2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

EQl mQ2 mQ3 mQ4

inco . . P
COUNCIL Lincoln’s ambitious future Source :CoLC(2017) www.lincoln.gov.uk

@ Line Sln Together, let’s deliver n




0¢

CITY OF
@ Lincoln
COUNCIL

Sickness comparison — by type

Total City of Lincoln FTE (excluding apprentices)

Cumulative short term annual sickness
per FTE

6 5.53
5.06

(]

H

w

N

[N

5.14

2012/13  2013/14  2014/15 2015/16 2016/17  2017/18

EQl mQ2 mQ3 mQ4

Lincoln’s ambitious future

Together, let’s deliver h

OI—‘NWJ}U'IO‘)\IOOLOO

Cumulative long term annual sickness
per FTE

8.94
8.48

6.35 6.11 6.45
5.07

2012/13  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18

EQl mQ2 mQ3 mQ4

Source :CoLC(2017)

www.lincoln.gov.uk



T

Overall sickness absence comparisons
with East Midlands local authorities

Overall sickness absence (FTE)(excluding schools)- quarterly
4

2.5
2
1.5
1

2016/17Q1 2016/17 Q2 2016/17 Q3 2016/17Q4 2017/18Q1 2017/18Q2 2017/18Q3 2017/18Q4
(Pre-release) (Pre-release) (Pre-release) (Pre-release)
Quarter

Per FTE

M Lincoln

B Mean for All participating local authority districts in East Midlands

Lincoln ’
COUNCIL Lincoln’s ambitious future Source :Lginform (2017) www.lincoln.gov.uk




(44

Followers to council’s social media sites

These figures include the number of followers to Lincoln corporate sites
and the Christmas Market.

Number of followers to the Council’s Facebook and Twitter sites
35,000

32,000

30,000

25,000 [f]

20,000

14,111

Followers

15,000

10,000 LyJ

4,618
5,000

I

Council site Christmas Market

M Twitter ™ Facebook

ZnCO . . P
COUNCIL Lincoln’s ambitious future Source :CoLC(2017) www.lincoln.gov.uk

@ L CITYOF Together, let’s deliver n




ec

Social media following

0 Facebook likes per 100,000 population 2017

- 20000 18517
8 15000
o 10000 5042 5508 5555 5594
S 5000 a45 582 2261 2326 2376 2950 3231 3586 3843 4108 4333
50__---Illll..l..
o
&) OO T 2 T\ T TS SN <SRN <SRN 2N SR I SN
2 80‘ &a,& ol @?@ @0& & & 05\6 o Q‘?/Qb & ¢ & c}o% N <<,+Q:& d?/‘;@
Qﬁo (9\00 O& \\’bK Q @'b Qf} D N & 0K
& 3
& &
Local Authority
0 Facebook likes per 100000 population 2018
o 30000 24798
8 25000
o 20000
S 15000 s 7970 13117
g 10000 3650 4435 4691 4698 4913 5896 6492 7124 74
Q 1771 1831 2837
ARER
o
<
F S E LS
C & 0(?’ < & N \'>° > Q@ & & \‘é & &F 'b%& Q"v
O(\'E Q& \O R *’b‘ Q® A @'b & O Q N
& & &
’b &Q/
‘e B
CITYOF Together, let’s deliver Local Authorit
Lincoln | /29%:"Ch't*¢ /
COUNCIL Lincoln’s ambitious future

Source : ONS Mid 2016 Population www.lincoln.gov.uk




144

Social media following

O Twitter follows per 100,000 population 2017

14000 12225
S 12000
S 10000
S 8000
S 6000
§ 5000 436 459 461 471 528 633 641 789 942 964 987 1283 1319 1418 1425
+—
° S R - S S T R R S TN S N GEEA
e \0\)( ;\\Q\ 0&' ,0(\% Q,(:}'QJ K\?> \\\ \(\’Z}c“' $\° b\ Q/é?’ a)\,o ) (’O\ $\(’ \.Q’ Q\Q’
> & & S C o Cb O o QY C & < o <<,+ >
SR N - & W O G Q
© > o &* &
G@ Cb
Local Authority
Twitter follows per 100,000 population 2018
16000 13939
S 14000
8 12000
o 10000
S 8000 4787
g 4000 409 423 463 508 592 606 680 796 908 965 1010 1063 1106 1340
) 0 — — — — — — -— - | | | | |
+—
© < > ) e O < e <
o EXIe 0\5‘& RO \é\é‘ & ‘;@o & & e S . N &@\
SRR N S S SRR O R ISR
& ¥ @& X & T F T N & °
X o)
Q@’b @
. b Local Authority
L zcz%c(); Together, let’s deliver
COUNCIL Lincoln’s ambitious future Source : ONS Mid 2016 Population WWW.|inCO|n.gOV. Uk




G¢

; Undern Last Target
[Measures for the year ending March 2018 Q4/16/17/1Q1/17/18] Q2/ 17/18[ Q3/17/18 Q4 17/18Status Performing TargetStatus
WBL 5 - Number of apprentices completing on time | 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 100% | Maintaining
\WBL 6 - Number of new starters on apprenticeships | 9 6 18 17 5 Maintaining
WBL 7 - Number of apprentices moving into 100% | 100% [ 100% [ 100% 75% Deteriorating Below
E ducati . 90% o
ucation, Employment or Training Target
\WBL 8 - Number of early leavers 5 4 1 0 1 Maintaining
WBL 9 - Employers / supervisors rating the WBL 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% 100% | Maintaining
team as good or very good
CS 4 - Number of face to face enquiries 12768 | 12886 | 12123 | 10388 9826 Improving
CS 5 - Number of telephone enquiries answered 36019 | 38188 | 36317 | 32102 | 33254 | Maintaining
CS 6 - Number of users logged into the self service | 6980 | 6516 | 6059 | 6409 9865 | Improving
Isystem Myinfo this quarter
CS 8 - Average time taken to answer a call to 28 57 62 49 104 Deteriorating 50 M Below
customer services Target
HU 4 - Number of grievances 1 0 1 1 0 Maintaining
HU 5 - Number of disciplinaries 7 0 4 2 0 Maintaining
ACC 8 - Average return on investment portfolio 0.62% [ 0.31% [ 0.31% | 0.53% | 0.67% | Maintaining
ACC 9 - Average interest rate on external borrowing 4.07% | 4.07% | 4.07% | 4.07% 3.9% Maintaining
REV 4 Council tax — in year collection rate for | 97.09% | 27.00% | 53.17% | 79.77 97.17% | Maintaining Above
Lincoln 96.61% | 97.11%
target
REV 5 Business tax —collection rate for Lincoln 99.43% | 35.83% | 61.13% | 86.43% 98.87% [ CIIIE e} 98.65% | 99.15% | On target
REV6 outstanding revenue customer changes 296 503 624 80 121 Improving
Measure 2016/17 2017/18 Status
DCT 6 - Percentage of invoices paid within 30 days 97.03% 95.17% Maintaining
DEM 8 — The number of individuals registered on the electoral register 62,552 61,635 Maintaining
PRO 4 - Percentage spend on contracts that have beei awarded to local contractors 41.10% 37.4% Maintaining
L zcz%c(); Together, let’s deliver
LM | Lincoln’s ambitious future www.lincoln.gov.uk




9¢

LGInform comparisons with East
Midlands:

Lincoln

{Quantiles of All local authority districts in East Midlands)

Council tax collection
rate 201617 %

Dwellings Total
201718 (taxbase)

Dwellings

Percentage of
Business rates
collected 201617 %

@L

CITY OF

incoln
COUNCIL

0 | FG T O O I N

96.5 a7 gr.6 o8 Ba.5 98

. O

A0k 40k G0k Bk Tk BDk 40k

Together, let’s deliver h

Lincoln’s ambitious future Source :Lginform (2017) www.lincoln.gov.uk




LC

Key points to note

Sickness levels are growing due to higher than normal long term
sickness

Lincoln continues to increase its social media reach — now the third
highest on twitter per 100,000 population vs our nearest neighbours

Our on-line facility Myinfo is increasing in popularity with over 50%
more users in Q4 than in Q3

We saw a temporary blip in the time taken to answer calls in Q4,
but it is expected to recover well in Q1

The 2017/18 Council Tax collection rate overachieved its target

NNDR collection — whilst lower than last year, still achieved its
target

@ Lincoln | Together let's deliver

COUNCIL Lincoln’s ambitious future www.lincoln.gov.uk




Our four strategic priorities

Let’s drive
economic
growth

Let’s reduce
inequality

 Let’s enhance
- our remarkable
place

A CITY OF Together, let’s deliver
Lincoln | 29" g
COUNCIL Lincoln’s ambitious future




Iltem No. 4b

PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE JULY 2018

Report by Councillor R Metcalfe, Portfolio Holder for ‘Our People and Resources’

Contents
1. INTRODUCTION — a changing political landscape ............ccceeeeeeiiiiiiieeeieeen 2
2. THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES ... ..ottt e e e e e 2
Key achievements for Let’s Drive Economic Growth...........ccccooeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeii, 2
Key achievements for Let’s Deliver Quality HOuSING...........cuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee 3
Key achievements for Let's Enhance Our Remarkable Place.............cccccoovvvviiiinnnnnnns 4
Key achievements for High Performing Service Delivery ...........ccccoooiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnnee. 4
3. KEY ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2017/18 — Our people & Resources............cccceevvveevevrvnnnnnnnns 4
3.1 Progress on reshaping local government.............oooiiiiiiiiiiiieee e 4
3.2 Financial Sustainability ............ccooiiiiiiiii e 5
3.3 Revenues Shared SErVICE.......ccooii i e e e e e e e e e e e 6
K e {o o1 [ (=10 4 [T o | PP 7
3.5 Asset OptiMISAION..........euiiieiie e 8
3.6 Emergency Planning ..o 8
3.7 BUSINESS CONTINUILY ..o 8
3.8 RiSK Man@gemENt.........ccoooiiiiiiii e e e 8
3.9 Corporate Health & Safety.........cccuumiiiii 8
3.10 HUMAN RESOUICES .....ceeiiiiiiiieiiee ettt e e e e e e e e e e 8
3.11 Work Based Learning (WBL) - ApprentiCeships ..........cccccuiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieeeeee 8
3.12 COMMUNICAtIONS ....cieieee et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eees 8
K Bt B I Y 10 F= =T o Yo o SR 8
3.14 Civic and International Partnerships..............uvuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiice e, 8
4. KEY ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2017/18 — Moving to new Portfolios ...........ccccccvvveeieeeinnnnnns 8
4.1 Benefits Shared Service (moving to Reducing Inequality PH) ..................cceee. 8
4.2 Complaints against the council (moving to Customer Experience and Review
e o ) TP PPEEPRPRP 8
4.3 Customer Services (moving to Customer Experience and Review PH)................ 8
4.4 Business Development & Information Technology (BDIT) (moving to Customer
Experience and ReVIEW PH).........ooo e 8
4.5 Audit arrangements (moving to Customer Experience and Review PH)............... 8
4.6 Electoral activity (moving to Customer Experience and Review PH) .................... 8
4.7 Allotments (moving to Remarkable Place PH) ...........ooooommimiiiiiciiiieeeeeeeeee 8
4.8 Equality and Diversity (moving to Reducing Inequality PH) ..o, 8
5. KEY PH PERFORMANCE RESULTS up to Quarter 4 2017/18.........coovoiiviiiiiiiieeeeene 8
(Some elements will be moving to other Portfolios as indicated above) ..................... 8
6. FUTURE CHALLENGES ... .o ittt e e e e e e e e e e e e 8
Following the completion of Phase One of Vision 2020, attention is now focusing on
planning the second phase of projects. Key projects are:..............ccceevvvveiveiiieeiinnnnnns 8
6. Appendix1 KEY PERFORMANCE RESULTS up to Q4 2017/18.........cccccvvvvrrennnen. 8

29



1. INTRODUCTION - a changing political landscape

The national political landscape continues to be uncertain, with consequences for the
council’s fortunes remaining unclear.

One imperative that can be taken as given, is the country's decision to withdraw from the
European community and the potential economic threat this will pose if there is an
economic downturn, with significant consequences for the council's income and our still
hard pressed revenue budget.

However, there is no doubt that in Lincoln we are seeing an unprecedented period of
public and private sector growth. Our two Universities continue to invest heavily, our
visitor economy will receive a huge boost from the Heritage Lottery funding for the
enhancements to our wonderful Cathedral, and our engineering/ manufacturing sector
remains vibrant.

The challenge to align our expenditure with our income remains, with approaching £1
million savings still to find within the lifetime of the current MTFS.

The council will need to continue to be innovative and entrepreneurial if it is to achieve
long term financial sustainability and continue to deliver high performing services.

2. THE COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES

In early 2017 we launched Vision 2020 - a new 3-year strategic plan, covering the period
2017 to 2020. This vision identified four key strategic priorities:

Let’s drive economic growth

Let’s reduce inequality

Let’s deliver quality housing

Let’'s enhance our remarkable place

These four priorities are underpinned by a final key element of Vision 2020 - professional
high performing service delivery. We will ensure that the council is well run, builds a
consensus with the communities we serve and with our partners around our vision and
strategic priorities, and can demonstrate that we are capable of delivering these.

What follows is an update you on how we are progressing with each of these priorities.
The council has worked to ensure members, staff and partners are informed of progress
and are engaged in the delivery of Vision 2020. This has included putting on staff and

member roadshows to keep people informed of delivery; member briefing sessions on
specific projects and partnership events such as the Lincoln Growth Conference.

30



Key achievements for ‘Let’s Drive Economic Growth’

The £30m Transport Hub is open. This includes;

o Lincoln Central Car Park — a 1,000 space multi-storey car park opened in
November 2017 and has already been awarded a Park Mark Award for safety.

o A state of the art bus station that includes 14 bus bays that enable up to 650
weekday departures.

o The Transport Hub is a catalyst for the Co-op’s £70m Cornhill Redevelopment.
Phase one is now complete; Phase Two is progressing; and Phase Three,
which will include an Everyman Cinema, is being planned.

Public consultation has taken place on the Western Growth Corridor, and discussions
are ongoing with the county council on the outputs of their transport modelling
exercise before moving onto a second phase of workshops with public and partners.
Our Public Realm Strategy has been published which will co-ordinate public realm
activities toward a single vision for public areas in the city centre

Our Growth Conference showcased the progress made in the city since the launch of
Vision 2020, and was attended by 150 delegates.

Key achievements for ‘Let’s Reduce Inequality’

We have a Universal Credit Support Team, which has supported 228 customers with
digital support, and 113 customers with budgeting support, since March 2018.
Community Leadership Scrutiny Committee undertook a review of Inclusive Growth to
identify how the economy can provide high quality employment opportunities. The
committee’s recommendations have been to Executive and a work-plan will now be
developed.

Our Social Value Policy has been adopted which embeds the council’s commitment to
social, environmental and economical sustainability through procurement processes.
We are working with partners to deliver multi-agency support for rough sleepers. This
project will support 120 individuals over the span of the project, and is delivered
thanks to £1.3m of Social Impact Bond funding from Government.

A new Community Lottery will be launched on 11t August, generating revenue to
support local voluntary community organisations in the city and in nearby villages.
The Lincoln Social Responsibility Charter was launched this year, which encourages
organisations in the city to go the extra mile for their employees and also for
communities in the city.

Key achievements for ‘Let’s Deliver Quality Housing’

Partnerships with Waterloo Housing Group and Westleigh Developments Ltd. are
enabling us to facilitate the delivery of 400 new homes by 2021. More than 200 of
these have been, or are in the process of being, built and the council has the
opportunity to purchase a number of these.

We have been allocated £2.8m from the Housing Infrastructure Fund for a marginal
viability study of the Spa Road development. This will unlock the potential
development of 312 homes on this brownfield site.

A Brownfield Sites Register has been published to provide information on suitable
brownfield land for development.

We have successfully bid for £3.2m from Homes England for specialist affordable
housing. This will part fund the delivery of 70 Extra Care units.

31



The Trusted Landlord Scheme continues to be promoted, and by March 2018, there
were 482 properties covered by the scheme.

Throughout 2017/18 the council completed £225,000 worth of environmental
improvement works across housing sites in the city.

Key achievements for ‘Let’s Enhance Our Remarkable Place’

The Sincil Bank Regeneration Scheme is progressing well, with the first phase
delivering improvements to its look at feel. The Neighbourhood Team has secured a
community office as an accessible and welcoming hub for advice and support.
Restoration work in Boultham Park is complete. This saw key heritage features
restored such as the bandstand, bridges and the footprint of Boultham Hall. An
opening event took place in May 2018.

A £400,000 investment has been made to upgrade the city’s CCTV network. The 130
new cameras were switched on in February 2018. City centre Wi-Fi will be made
available via the CCTV network in the coming months.

The £1.5m transformation of Birchwood Leisure Centre is complete which has seen a
new children’s soft play area created, along with a larger fitness gym and a new café.
The allotment capital development programme was launched, which includes plans to
refurbish 17 allotment sites. The £600,000 Phase One work across 11 sites is now
complete.

Key achievements for ‘High Performing Service Delivery’

3.

We have invested £13 million in a new, modern hotel building currently under
construction on Tentercroft Street. This investment will support the city’s tourism
industry, create jobs and provide a good level of return to support the delivery of
services to our residents.

A £6.6 million investment has also been made in purchasing two NCP car parks,
which have been leased back to NCP to operate. This arrangement provides revenue
for the authority, and further underpins a more commercial approach to securing
council services well into the future.

We have published a People Strategy to underpin the delivery of Vision 2020. This
strategy recognises staff are key to delivering high performing services, and the
implementation of this strategy will continue throughout Vision 2020.

We have also adopted a Customer Experience Strategy which seeks to transform the
way we engage and support our customers. This includes a move towards self-serve,
where customers can better access the information they need at any time.

KEY ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2017/18 — Our people & Resources

3.1 Progress on reshaping local government

A number of discussions are taking place with other councils in Greater Lincolnshire with
consultancy firm Local Partnerships which has funding to support the development of a
potential Greater Lincolnshire growth deal. The city council is in regular discussions with
Local Partnerships and neighbouring councils to identify infrastructure projects across the
region that would support growth in the city, and that could form part of a possible future
Greater Lincolnshire bid submission.

32



3.2 Financial Sustainability

In common with the rest of local government the Council has continued to face a large
number of challenges during 2017/18 which have seen:

e the continuation of severe central government funding reductions, the distribution
of which has not been uniform across the different types of authority with some
being significantly more affected than others, this Council being one of those
suffering a greater proportionate loss.

e an increased reliance on retained Business Rates and the levels of financial risk
and uncertainty that this creates.

¢ the legacy of impacts from the last economic crisis that still persist, affecting jobs,
housing and business growth, low returns on investments, these in turn create
pressure on the generation of local income streams and increased demand for
council services from customers who rely on the safety net provided by local
government.

However in response to this environment the Council continues to deliver a track record
of strong financial discipline. This means planning ahead, securing savings in advance,
re-investing in more efficient ways of working, adopting a more commercial approach,
prioritising resources for economic development measures, whilst making careful use of
reserves to meet funding gaps and mitigate risks.

The Council’'s successful financial management to date has enabled the protection of
core services, whilst at the same time ensured that resources are directed towards the
priority areas in the Council’s Vision 2020.

Despite the financial challenges the Council has already faced, and successfully
managed, local government is still set to experience significant funding reform from 2020.

The Fair Funding Review will re-establish the baseline need of every local authority, and,
at the same time, business rates baselines will be reset for the first time. The government
also intends to redesign the business rates retention system, moving to 75% local
retention, while restructuring the system of risk and rewards. All this is due to come into
effect in April 2020.

Ahead of this the Council’'s General Fund continues to face a significant financial
challenge if it is to continue to deliver its Vision 2020 priorities and to deliver services to
the public within a reduced, and more variable funding envelope.

Whilst the three year programme of activity set out in the Vision 2020 is fully resourced
within the Council's Medium Term Financial Strategy, the Strategy also includes a
savings target still to be achieved along with a number of significant financial risks which
could affect the level of savings required.

Over the last 10 year period the Council has delivered savings in excess of £7.5m, a
significant reduction in comparison to the overall net expenditure budget. However further
savings of £0.102m are still to be delivered in order to achieve the current target by
2018/19.

5

33



The Towards Financial Sustainability (TFS) programme is and continues to be the vital
element in ensuring that the Council maintains a sustainable financial position and
delivers the required reductions in the net budget. In order to refocus and maintain
momentum the TFS programme has been re-aligned and there are now three agreed
strands to achieve savings. These are:

e Commercialisation — generation of new income streams, and commercial trading
opportunities

e Asset Rationalisation — optimisation of usage and commercial returns of the City’s
property and land portfolio

e Shared Services/ savings — ensure the provision of professional, high performing
services

Alongside this programme the Council will continue to seek ways to maximise its tax
bases through economic development measures, through its Vision 2020, which enhance
the economic prosperity of the City.

As part of the maximisation of tax bases the council, along with the other Lincolnshire
District Councils, Lincolnshire County Council and North Lincolnshire Council applied to
be a pilot for 100% Business Rates Retention in 2018/19 and was confirmed as one of
the ten successful applications.

This means that for 2018/19 the council will receive 60% of business rates, with 40%
going to Lincolnshire County Council (under 50% retention the funding splits were 50%
Central Government, 40% Lincoln City Council and 10% Lincolnshire County Council.

Crucially the pilot scheme includes a ‘no detriment’ clause meaning that no authority shall
receive less than if it was operating under the current 50% retention scheme.

Based on an assessment of the amount of Business Rates that are expected to be
collected during 2018/19 the additional resources estimated to be achieved from being in
the pilot is circa £1.5m. An element of this additional resource has been set aside to fund
the forecast reduction in business rates when the system is reset in April 2020, with the
balance going towards economic regeneration.

This approach by the council on both its TFS programme and maximisation of tax bases
focuses its efforts on sustainability for the future

3.3 Revenues Shared Service

Our Revenues and Benefits shared service with North Kesteven District Council
continues to go from strength to strength, highlighted by being successfully shortlisted as
finalists for three high profile national awards — with the award winners to be announced
in mid-October. This is recognition for a service which has been subject to a whole host
of changes both locally and nationally in terms of customer demands, changes in national
policy and legislation, welfare reforms and economic impacts. All of this alongside a
backdrop of impressive performance and savings in excess of £0.5m per annum between
City of Lincoln and North Kesteven. Government funding from DWP and MHLG
continues to be a year-on-year challenge, however the team responds to such issues
proactively and positively, with a real focus on outcomes for our customers.

34



Impacts of the economy and cumulative welfare reforms provide a challenging
environment for Revenues colleagues to collect and recover monies due to the Council,
such as; Council Tax, Business Rates, Former Tenant Arrears and Sundry Debtors — as
well as collecting the levy for the Lincoln Business Improvement District. Despite these
challenges, the team continues to perform well — proactively advertising customers to
‘Get in touch, not in debt’ through our Fair Collection Policy, as well as helping to
signpost customers to vital budget and debt management services wherever appropriate.

In terms of performance:

e In-year Council Tax collection 2017/18 (97.17%) was 0.08% higher than for
2016/17 (97.09%) — this despite an increase of collectable debit of £1.98m, also
2017/18 was the first year our Localised Council Tax Support scheme was
amended which reduced the level of support in some cases;

e Although Business Rates in-year collection 2017/18 (98.87%) reduced by 0.56%
compared to 2016/17 (99.43%), the key reason was due to new rateable value
schedules being received from the Valuation Office Agency in mid-March 2018,
which left little time for officers to try and collect this backdated debit. An outturn
position of 98.87% is still impressive and highly competitive on a national scale;

e The number of Council Tax customers awaiting their correspondence to be
processed was 121 at 31t March 2018, compared to 296 at the end of March
2017 — and a significant reduction from 1,713 at the end of March 2012.
Processes and resources have been reviewed and updated accordingly, and it is
envisaged that this excellent position is now more sustainable into the future.

The Revenues Team has worked closely with our Business Development and IT Team to
develop and introduce a number of integrated e-forms which enable customers to
complete online forms which automatically populate back office systems, reducing
resources needed to manually intervene in a number of cases — freeing up key resources
to work on other vital areas of Revenues administration. Going forward, the aim is to
introduce further such forms — this is vital as the team continues to administer more
Council Tax accounts through housing growth of the City (as well as North Kesteven, due
to being a shared service).

Our Team continues to deliver initiatives to try and reduce fraud in the system — through
cross-departmental and national data-match exercises, and initiatives through the
Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership. Regular reviews of Council Tax Single Person
Discounts, Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support incomes, and Business Rates
potential ‘avoidance’ are key activities for our shared service.

3.4 Procurement

As in previous years the current financial situation has meant that procurement continues
to be one of the areas where there is potential to generate savings. However this is with
the acknowledgement that this is subject to market forces and therefore is something
which we cannot control.

Negotiations have recently concluded with Kier this year in respect of the Housing
Planned Maintenance contract provision and the option to extend for a further 3 year
period. These were very successful and it is anticipated that this will generate significant
savings as well as service delivery improvements over the remainder of the contract.

35



The Procurement Manager as part of her duties continually reviews whether there are
any other potential spend areas and/or contracts which could be renegotiated or
procured in order to generate savings.

The Procurement Manager has recently developed a number of strategies/policies which
it is hoped will enable the council to generate more added value to its procurement
activity. The most significant one of these is the Social Value Policy which details the
Council’'s aspirations to generate added value within its procurement exercises, where
appropriate.

The notice period with Procurement Lincolnshire has ended and there has been a
seamless transition to a in house provision.

In addition to the savings achieved, substantial procurement support has been
provided within the last year to a number of the key strategic priorities including the
Housing New Build Programme, the Boultham Park Restoration Project, and Western
Growth Corridor as well as a number of the priorities of Vision 2020.

3.5 Asset Optimisation

As noted earlier three commercial investment properties have been purchased to
generate new income streams for the council. The NCP car parks at St Rumbolds Street
& Brayford Street and the Travelodge under construction at Tentercoft Street are subject
to institutional leases to NCP and Travelodge and generate a significant income for the
Council. Further purchases are being considered to generate additional income.

Supporting Housing - An agreement to purchase 18 acres of land at Queen Elizabeth
Road Lincoln was completed on a subject to planning basis. This land will be combined
with the Council’s frontage site of 13 acres to generate a potential capacity of 326
houses. A residential property at 93 Rookery Lane was acquired to provide additional
plots and an improved access for the Councils proposed residential site.

Protection of heritage assets/General maintenance schemes - Full external
redecoration of 20/22 Steep Hill was undertaken and the project to repair Westgate Wall
stone repairs was completed. A feasibility study for Greyfriars was undertaken working in
partnership with Heritage Lincolnshire to look at potential uses for the building with a view
to submitting a full bid to Heritage Lottery fund in 2019. Phase 1 work was funded by HLF
and architectural heritage fund. Greyfriars is currently on the buildings at risk register.

In addition to the usual planned maintenance projects, a large scheme to replace
obsolete pipework at Yarborough Leisure Centre was carried out.

3.6 Emergency Planning

The Emergency Plan provides a framework for the control and co-ordination of a
response to an emergency affecting the council and is refreshed annually. Over the past
year we have continued to work with the County Council’s Emergency Planning unit on:

e a review of the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum’s (LRF) Command and Control
structure and procedures

36



e a large multi-agency ‘Move to Critical’ workshop which we hosted at City Hall to
develop protocols for what we do should the national threat level move from
severe to critical;

¢ learning from the tragic Grenfell disaster;

¢ involvement in the recent Exercise Mercian King (the multi-agency and armed
Police exercise at Lincoln College).

We now have a full out of hours rota for emergency planning strategic (gold)
commanders which includes a combination of Chief Executive, Directors and Assistant
Directors. The strategic commander level was previously CMT level only but has been
expanded to Assistant Director level to increase resilience. A review is underway of the
staff that make up our tactical (silver) commander group and the training and support
they require to further increase resilience.

Assistant Directors have received strategic commander training and refresher training
has been rolled out to staff currently at tactical and operational (bronze) levels.

Staff have continued to be trained on ACT — Action Counters Terrorism as required over
the last year, including colleagues from the DWP. ACT is the new name and format for
what was previously known as Project Griffin which is a national police initiative to protect
our cities and communities from the threat of terrorism by familiarising staff of
organisations such as ours on security, counter-terrorism and crime prevention issues.

3.7 Business Continuity

Business Continuity Management (BCM) is a framework that assists in the management
of risks which might impact the smooth running of our organisation or the delivery of key
services. These risks could be from the external environment (e.g. power outages,
severe weather etc.) or from within an organisation (e.g. systems failure, loss of key staff
etc.) Well organised Business Continuity plans will facilitate the recovery of key business
systems within agreed timescales whilst maintaining the council’s critical activities and
the delivery of vital services to the public.

Business Continuity Management complements and interrelates with other corporate
activities, notably risk management and emergency planning.

The council’'s overarching business continuity plan is reviewed each year. We have 21
service area plans all of which undertake an annual review, led by the service area and
supported by the council’s Emergency Planning Officer who is from the Joint Emergency
Management Service at Lincolnshire County Council. All plans are scheduled to be
completed by July of each year. Following significant investment a secondary ICT
location has now been established and tested and is fully functional at Hamilton House.
A draft ICT Disaster Recovery Plan has been prepared and is now being tested against
Corporate Business Continuity Plans. This progress in relation IT Disaster Recovery has
resulted in the issue being considered as significantly progressed enough to be removed
from the Annual Governance Statement as an area of significant concern.

The councils Business Continuity Co-ordinator is the Chief Finance Officer and regularly
meets with the council’'s Emergency Planning Officer, who sits on relevant internal
meetings such as Safety Advisory Group and the Christmas Market Safety Advisory
Group to provide necessary support and guidance.

37



3.8 Risk Management

The Council continues to develop and monitor of the key risks, those which could affect
the Council’s ability to achieve its priorities during the year. Elements of Risk
Management are outsourced to Lincolnshire County Council's (LCC) Assurance
Lincolnshire service in order to provide the level of expertise that we require. The
development and monitoring of the Council’s strategic, operational and project risk
registers however remains a role that is undertaken by the Council through the Corporate
Management Team and Directorate Management Teams.

The Strategic Risk Register for 2017-18 was initially formulated by the Corporate
Management Team in May 2017 and as part of the reporting protocol within the current
Risk Management Strategy both the Executive Committee and Performance Scrutiny
Committee receive reports on the Strategic Risk Register to consider the status and
movement of all strategic risks at that particular point in time.

Each Directorate identifies key risks within their service areas creating a Directorate Risk
Register. These registers contain risks that are mainly of an operational nature.

An Internal Audit was undertaken during 2017/18, of the Council’'s risk management
arrangements. The purpose of this review was to focus on the Strategic and Directorate
risk registers ensuring that they are up to date, regularly reviewed and risks are actively
managed. It was concluded that there was substantial assurance - that the Council had
effective risk management arrangements in place.

The Council’s Risk Management Strategy has recently been reviewed and there is a
comprehensive training programme for all officers who have roles and responsibility for
risk management which is delivered every 2 years. Training commenced for both officers
and members from April 2018 and an e-learning package for new starters or a refresh for
existing officers will be made available in early autumn 2018.

The Council are part of the Greater Lincolnshire Risk Management Group (GLRMG) and
will be shortly conducting their own annual benchmarking exercise between the districts
within Lincolnshire. This will be a much simpler way of benchmarking and enables us to
share best practice.

3.9 Corporate Health & Safety

A comprehensive two year rolling Health & Safety Development Plan is in place and is
prioritised according to risk. It is fully resourced and is approved and monitored by
Health & Safety Champions Group. The main focus last year was to ensure that
occupational health measures were suitable and sufficient to protect our employees. In
addition, during this year a new online Incident Reporting System was launched providing
a platform to identify trends or hotspots to target improvement.

The Management of Asbestos Policy and associated procedures was under review and
two new elLearning tools have been developed and launched by Corporate Health &
Safety relating to a new starters health and safety induction and display screen
equipment (DSE) training and risk assessment. Over 150 of our employees have already
undertaken this training.

10

38



A robust and positive working relationship with our trade union Safety Representatives
continues to flourish which is integral in maintaining and improving our organisations
health and safety culture.

3.10 Human Resources

During 2017 the People Strategy and action plan was implemented across the Council.
The purpose of the three year strategy is an enabling framework which supports the
delivery of the Vision 2020.

The Strategy is divided into three key themes which support the Council’s strategic
objectives:-

e A focus on the promotion of health and wellbeing initiatives that support healthier
lifestyles. A number of initiatives have been implemented including the Global
Corporate Challenge, awarding of Mindful Employer status and the development of a
health and wellbeing guide for all employees

e Ensuring the highest standards of leadership and management throughout the
organisation to support a motivated and engaged workforce. A coaching programme
was implemented where 24 members of staff had the opportunity to take part in four
coaching sessions during 2017. A staff engagement strategy and action plan has
been developed to further increase communication and feedback within the Council

e Delivery of professional high performing services and becoming high performing
teams included a re-branding of the appraisal system to “Your Performance Matters”.
The completion rate following the implementation of the new appraisal system was
86% which was a notable achievement. A 20% quality audit was undertaken which
has informed and shaped the refresher training for 2018 appraisals

The HR team continue to review the HR policies to ensure clarity, harmonisation and
compliance with legislation. The reviews are incorporated within a timetable to ensure
that all policies are checked at least every three years. The Trade Unions have been
actively involved in these reviews. As part of each review, training continues to be
provided for all staff who have supervisory duties.

The positive relationship with the Unions continues, largely as a result of the monthly joint
HR and Union meeting, where Unions are updated on staffing issues and are given the
opportunity to give their opinions and input.

A Staff Charter has been developed to provide a framework for staff and to set out the
behaviours we want and expect to see in line with our core values. Following a formal
staff consultation this will be launched and implemented across the Council.

The HR team continue to review and monitor all workforce data in accordance with the
equality and diversity action plan.

3.11 Work Based Learning (WBL) - Apprenticeships

The apprenticeship levy was introduced in April 2017. The Council is a levy paying
employer with a 2.3% target of the workforce expected to be apprentices. From May

11

39



2017 a digital account became accessible to the Council to support the training of
apprenticeships.

The Council applied to the Skills Funding Agency to be placed as a supporting provider,
on the register of apprenticeship training providers. Following a rigorous application
process the Council was successful in becoming a sub-contractor to continue to deliver
apprenticeships across the Council working with First College as the main provider.

The two partnerships with Lincolnshire County Council and First College continue
however 2018 will see the demise of the contract with Lincolnshire County Council as
they have chosen to take an alternative route under the new regulations.

As the national picture has begun to evolve we are reviewing delivery models to explore
opportunities to enter in additional sub-contracting relationships, particularly with SME’s.

Despite a decline in numbers on programme for the past academic year 100% of
apprentices have achieved on time and 100% have moved into education, employment
or training. The team continue to focus on quality and excellence — an achievement
included being in the top 100 Employers for School Leavers Awards coming sixth out of
the top ten Public Sector Employers category.

Over the coming year the WBL team will continue to support apprenticeships, provide
career advice and interview support across the Council. WBL will also support the People
Strategy by utilising existing skills and expertise within the team to deliver core training
identified from the appraisal process.

Craft apprenticeship scheme

We currently have five apprenticeships in position at Hamilton House (two plasterers, a
joiner, an electrician and a painter) and we are now in the recruitment stage to appoint
three apprentices - a joiner, an electrician and a painter to start in September this year.

We continue to ensure every effort is made so that the vacancies are seen as widely as
possible, with information available on our website, Lincoln College website, on social
media and in HOME, the tenant’'s magazine. As a result we have seen an increase in the
level of applications.

A commitment has been made to recruit at least two apprentices annually, the trade to be
determined in consultation with the Housing Repairs Services workforce who provide the
day to day supervision.

Housing Repairs continue to work closely with our partners and contractors to provide as
much technical and workplace experience as possible. The apprentices are also going to
be getting experience of new build on the new housing schemes.

As well as the long term apprenticeships we also provide opportunities for short-

placements - we have contacts with Lincoln college and provide work experience for 8
full-time students on a minimum two week placement.

12

40



3.12 Communications

Our communications team continues working hard to ensure our reputation is protected
and enhanced where possible. Staff are communicated with effectively and often, and
the team continues to ensure that Vision 2020 and its priorities are embedded across the
organisation and within the local community.

Our social media channels continue to go from strength to strength and we have had
some fantastic outcomes using these tools.

The opening of both the bus station and car park, which together form the Lincoln
Transport Hub, received maximum publicity as they were being built, thanks to a
well-planned communications campaign which ensured every milestone was
celebrated and communicated to partners and the media. Their respective
opening days both went incredibly well and each resulted in some great press
coverage for the new facilities.

The Boultham Park restoration project was a significant one locally and throughout
the entirety of the work, the communications team worked closely with Linkage to
ensure members, residents and partners were kept informed of each milestone
reached. This culminated in the Park’s opening ceremony, coinciding with the
Royal Wedding and F.A.Cup Final, and a big screen being placed in the park.
Turnout was fantastic due a concerted communications campaign.

The early closure of Lincoln Christmas Market was a significant event and the
work involved in communicating this successfully to all the day’s potential visitors
was successfully handled, utilising contacts within the local media and social
media to ensure word got out swiftly to as wide an audience as possible.

We have started to develop new skills in different aspects of media to try and
modernise and move forward the way the council communicates with its residents
and stakeholders - for example through the deployment of film (see Growth
Conference film). These capabilities will be further enhanced by the team
expanding its partnership with Lincoln University which see the Council offer
placement to journalism and media students and the communications team having
access to the cutting edge facilities and technology on the University site.

Our social media followers have continued to increase. We now have almost
14,100 followers to our corporate twitter account - this continues to see us with the
most number of twitter followers for district councils in the East Midlands and one
of the five highest population to followers ratio in the UK

On Facebook, our presence has increased significantly with more than 4,000
people following the council’s page. We are also branching out and exploring other
ways of communicating with the public on social media, launching an Instagram
account and What's App too.

We have launched a community lottery to provide support for local not-for-profit
organisations in the city. The project is well underway for rollout this summer, with
23 good causes already accepted onto the scheme. In comparison to other
authorities that have introduced the scheme, we have received more interest and

13

41



sign-ups at this stage alone. Thanks to a communications push using marketing
materials produced in-house, we were able to exceed our goal of 40 good causes
attending the launch event to 61 - resulting in 100 individual attendees and a very
successful event.

3.13 Annual report

The 2017 Annual Report was presented aligned to Vision 2020, covering the key
achievements and projects delivered for each strategic priority, including the strand of
work - high performing services. The 2018 report is currently in development, and is due
to go to Performance Scrutiny Committee in August 2018, followed by Executive and
Council in September 2018.

3.14 Civic and International Partnerships

Guildhall: The City owns some of the oldest Charters in the country and the University of
Lincoln has agreed to work with the council to restore and re-condition Lincoln’s historic
Charters. They will then be on display in the Guildhall, as opposed to being kept at the
archives, therefore attracting more visitors.

The Guildhall was open to the public for two full days in March for the Lincoln Heritage

Weekend and saw just under 900 visitors (both tourists and locals). Lincoln’s Guildhall is
still listed as the second most important place to visit in Lincoln, on Trip Advisor, with Visit
England awarding it an accreditation for 2017/18

Mayoralty: The Mayor and Civic party successfully attended over 300 events throughout
their Mayoral Year. Councillor Chris Burke, selected the Lincoln Community Food Larder
and Lincoln Food Banks as his chosen charities during his Year of Office. Fundraising
events organised by Civic Office raised £6,720.84, to be shared between the two
charities

Civic Events: The Lincoln Christmas Lights Switch-on event attracted over 6,000 people
and was held for the first time on a Friday with a view to encouraging ‘late-night
shoppers’. The event was larger than previous years, now extending into City Square.

A successful joint RAF Freedom Parade (RAF Waddington and Scampton) took place in
April 2018.

International Partnerships: A positive Civic visit to Neustadt and der Weinstrasse,
Germany, took place in December 2017. The Mayor and Civic Manager met with the new
Oberburgermeister (now in office for eight years) to discuss twinning relations and future
prospects; i.e. educational visits/exchanges/tourism and arts/Christmas Market.

14

42



4. KEY ACHIEVEMENTS IN 2017/18 — Moving to new Portfolios

4.1 Benefits Shared Service (moving to Reducing Inequality PH)

The demands on this team continue to shift and change, largely due to the ongoing
rollout of national welfare reforms, but the team continues to deliver excellent standards
of performance and service to our customers. In terms of performance:

e The average number of days to process a Housing Benefit new claim has reduced
by 5.15 days from 2016/17 to 2017/18, with an outturn position of 24.29 days
(29.44 days in 2016/17)

e The average number of days to process a Housing Benefit change of
circumstance has reduced by 0.49 days from 2016/17 to 2017/18, with an outturn
position of 4.00 days (4.49 days 2016/17);

e The outstanding number of customers awaiting their claim to be processed has
reduced from 2,401 at the end of March 2012 (the first financial year of the shared
service) to 696 at the end of March 2018 — a reduction in over 70%, - and this
position is now in a much more stable and sustainable position (whilst recognising
there are still peak periods of demand on the team);

e Discretionary Housing Payments totalling almost £206,000 awarded to Lincoln
residents;

e Sample-checks of ‘accurate first time’ processing of benefit claims stood at 92%
for 2017/18, an increase from 91% in 2016/17, and a significant improvement from
65% in 2011/12 (again, the year the shared service was formed);

e Customer satisfaction remains high — 98.98% for 2017/18.

Not only are these performance figures extremely positive, but the team has also faced
an unprecedented scale of change through the national rollout of Universal Credit.
Universal Credit ‘Full Service’ was introduced into Lincoln Jobcentre from 7t March
2018. Our shared service has been tremendously proactive in preparing for Universal
Credit over the last 5 years. Our Benefits officers now operate a ‘flagship’ service of
support to those claiming Universal Credit — based in our co-location with Jobcentre Plus
and delivering holistic support to customers on a whole range of Universal Credit related
matters, such as; Assisted Digital Support, Personal Budgeting Support, housing matters,
benefit claims issues, Council Tax Support etc. This service has been highly commended
internally and by JobcentrePlus themselves. The team is directly contributing towards our
Reducing Inequality strategic aim by ensuring customers’ incomes are being maximised
as well as ensuring opportunity of access to free digital facilities and to IT support. Our
Welfare Team does a fantastic job of ensuring more complex budgeting support/ debt
advice cases are addressed and our customers given the help and advice they need.

Other projects delivered through our Benefits Service are an ‘Assisting Low Income
Households’ (ALIH) project in partnership with Lincoln College utilising Lincolnshire
County Council’s Health and Wellbeing Fund, and ‘The Network’. The ALIH project funds
educational courses to assist those otherwise unable to afford to pay for courses
themselves nor entitled to receive funded courses from elsewhere, - this project runs
from September 2015 to August 2019. In 2017/18, 141 people undertook an ICT or other
employment-skills related course, of whom 104 passed, and 42 went on to find
employment or secured an increased salary within six months of completing the course.

15

43



In terms of ‘The Network’ — our Council supports a project delivered out of City Hall
providing holistic support, advice and signposting to the NEET group. In 2017/18, The
Network supported 312 young people, and worked with over 60 partners through
appointments and events. This includes the ‘Launch Into...” series which focused on a
particular employment sector or industry, inviting partners to promote their business and
opportunities to young people. The Network held events based around construction,
engineering, hospitality, and hair and beauty. Around 170 referrals to partner agencies
have been made, reflecting The Network’s aim to signpost young people to relevant
organisations and promote a joined up working approach in Lincoln. Other activities
include face-to-face appointments, in which around 130 young people have visited The
Network’s office to receive careers advice and guidance. As a result, 60% of the young
people seen for appointments have progressed into education, employment, or training.
The Network also proactively engages and communicates through its social media
accounts, promoting support services and job vacancies.

The team has also recently signed-up to a three-year arrangement with West Lindsey
District Council to support completion of the Housing Benefit subsidy claim.

4.2 Complaints against the council (moving to Customer Experience and
Review PH)

For the full year 2017-18 we received 361 corporate complaints, which was 7 less than
the previous year’s total of 368. The number of complaints made by the public against
the council is decreasing slightly year on year, and by learning from complaints we hope
to see this trend to continue. This year 127 (35%) of complaints were upheld. In these
cases the circumstances and outcomes are discussed at department management
meetings and relevant steps are then taken to improve our procedures or prevent
recurrence.

Complaints were answered in an average of 6.2 days, which is well within the
recommendations of the Local Government Ombudsman.

The Local Government Ombudsman (LGO) and the Housing Ombudsman Service
reported on 3 complaints which were escalated for independent jurisdiction, neither of the
Ombudsman services found evidence of maladministration or bad practice in any of the
complaints that they investigated, therefore our total of upheld Ombudsman cases for the
year was nil.

Number of formal | percentage of | Average time | Number  of | Number  of
complaints complaints to respond to | LGO LHO
received upheld formal complaints complaints
complaints upheld upheld

CX 53 26% 7.1 0

DCE 85 19% 5.3 0

DMD 19 42% 0 0

DHR 204 11% 7.8 0 0

Total 361 35% 6.2 0 0

16

44



4.3 Customer Services (moving to Customer Experience and Review PH)

Our Customer Service team continues to resolve a large number of enquiries from the
public, either face to face in City Hall, over the telephone or increasingly by email or
through our website enquiry forms.

Last year’s telephone response performance was reasonable throughout the year, with
the average time to answer a call standing at 56.9 seconds. Quarter 4 performance was
badly affected by the adverse weather that we experienced at the beginning of March
and the performance that we saw in Quarter 3 — 48.7 seconds on average, was followed
by an average of 104.6 seconds during January, February and March. Performance has
also been affected by ongoing issues with the existing telephone system. The team are
currently undertaking final user acceptance testing on an upgraded system that should
bring us much more reliability. Demand on the telephones remains high — the team
answered 137,871 enquiries in the contact centre, answering 93.7% of all calls offered.

We are making progress in encouraging customers who can to contact us online. New
Housing Benefit claimants are using an online claim form. Customers can report a wide
range of environmental services issues on line and our website repair reporting and
tracking tool is proving popular with tenants. Our email reminders for garden waste
subscriptions contain an easy link to the payment portal and this, coupled with ad hoc
visits to our website, meant that 88% of our registrations and payments this year were
made entirely self-serve.

The Customer Experience Strategy 2017-2020 has seen staff from across the council
working together to deliver the outcomes which we developed as part of the Vision 2020
programme. The aim is to provide high performing services that achieve value for
money, while ensuring our residents are placed at the heart of service delivery.

There are 17 themes which will help us achieve the strategic outcomes. These include:

e Accessible staff: Making ourselves easy to contact and continuing to offer local
sessions and home visits for the most vulnerable residents. We now share City
Hall with other public sector and voluntary sector bodies who provide services to
the same individuals. This improves convenience and accessibility for customers
and is a source of income for the council.

Value for money. We have reduced expenditure on postage over the year by
nearly £30,000 by a combination of moving transactions on-line and outsourcing
our post to make the most of bulk discounts and efficiencies. Payment transaction
costs have been reduced by making City Hall cashless and promoting payment by
Direct Debit where possible.

On-line requests and claims: We are working across the council, developing on-
line forms that integrate with our other systems and reduce unnecessary staff
intervention. This is supplemented by our My Info service giving customers direct
access to their account balances and benefit payments.

Call quality monitoring, using our Contact Centre system to listen in to live and
recorded calls, to improve transactions and ensure that our training is effective.
Commercialisation - Innovation is a key principle in Vision 2020 and is one of our
new core values, we will continue to explore all avenues for the commercialisation
of our existing services

17

45



4.4 Business Development & Information Technology (BDIT) (moving to
Customer Experience and Review PH)

The team have been developing the services the Council offers, and the infrastructure to
support officers in serving customers more efficiently.

Over the last year the team has:
¢ Implemented new self-service offerings for Council Tax customers
e Supported the implementation of the new Choice-Based lettings solution
e Implemented solutions to help with compliance with the new General Data
Protection Regulations
Provided infrastructure for the new Transport Hub
Work towards implementation of the new Telephony system
Deployed new wireless solutions in council buildings
Enabled self-service of land charges information online
Improved web services to make information more accessible

Over the next 12 months, key focus will be

e Delivering improvements to the ICT infrastructure

e Developing an upgraded web presence

e Delivering efficiencies and improved customer service in support of the Customer
Experience Strategy

e Develop a new ICT Strategy

e Complete rollout of new desktop technology

4.5 Audit arrangements (moving to Customer Experience and Review PH)

Internal Audit continues to operate effectively, working as part of the Assurance
Lincolnshire Partnership, and the team continues to work with, and provide Audit services
to other councils.

Internal Audit have provided assurance in some key areas during 2017/18 including
financial systems, projects and other service areas. The team has continued to use its
‘Combined Assurance’ model to provide a broader level of assurance to management
and members.

| am very pleased to report that the latest annual Internal Audit report (2017/18) provided
substantial (green) assurance across areas of governance, risk and internal control.

External Audit is undertaken by KPMG and they are currently (June 2018) commencing
the audit of the 2017/18 statement of accounts. Their most recent annual governance
report/Annual audit letter provided an unqualified opinion on the statement of accounts
2016/17 including a positive Value for Money conclusion. KMPG’s contract came to an
end, and following a national procurement process Mazars were allocated as our new
External Auditors from 2018

18

46



4.6 Electoral activity (moving to Customer Experience and Review PH)

The new Democratic Team Leader and Elections Manager is now well established,
having managed four electoral events since commencing his role in December 2016.

Alongside the annual canvass in 2017 it was necessary to hold a by-election in Carholme
Ward which took place on 19 October 2017, with a turnout of 27.33%.

The 2017 canvass was successful and resulted in publication of the Electoral Register on
1 December 2017, consisting of 61,642 electors.

The City Council elections on 3 May 2018 were very successfully run. The electorate at
the time of the election was 61,790 with a turnout of 30.33%.

The latest electorate figure (June 2018) is 62,043 for the City of Lincoln, with the next
update scheduled for publication on 2 July 2018. It is worth noting that maintenance of
the electoral register is ongoing day-to-day. Between 1 December 2017 and 1 June
2018, the team has created 2646 entries on the register, deleted 2245 entries from the
register and amended 452 entries on the register.

Preparatory work is now underway for the 2018 canvass, which will commence towards
the end of July 2018. The Democratic Team Leader and Elections Manager has
commissioned the placing on an advertisement in Lincoln City Football Club’s community
magazine to encourage/remind people to register to vote which it is anticipated will hit
20,000 households in the city, as well as being circulated to schools and colleges.
Further work will also take place with the Student Union and communications colleagues
at the University of Lincoln to encourage registration by students, with wider publicity via
the Council’'s social media accounts also continuing — all promotional activity will be
complemented by national campaigns by the Electoral Commission.

The Ethics and Engagement Chair and Vice-Chair have expressed an interest in
considering an item on electoral engagement, with a view to improving turnout at
elections rather than focussing on registration.

Preparatory work on the Polling Station review will commence in October 2018, with
completion of the review required by January 2020. The location and use of polling
stations is something that the Chair and Vice-Chair of the Ethics and Engagement
Committee have highlighted as a potential contributing factor to electoral engagement so
it would seem sensible to liaise with the Committee as part of the Polling Station review.

Planning will commence for the 2019 City Council elections in December/January.

4.7 Allotments (moving to Remarkable Place PH)

The Allotment Capital Improvement Programme, investing a significant sum of money
into the refurbishment of our allotment sites has now completed all works in Phase 1.
This phase has seen a complete clearance and redesign of the Burton Ridge site, seen
new security gates and fencing at Boultham Park, Greenbank Drive and Tritton Road
sites, a new water main has been installed at Boultham Park and improvements to on
site security and drainage at Canwick Hill and Long Leys Road has also been
undertaken.

19

47



Phase 2 works are scheduled to commence in September 2018 with works to improve
security and drainage at Boultham Glebe and Hykeham Road, works to further improve
drainage at Long Leys Road, address access difficulties at Wragby Road and complete a
number of smaller improvements to South Common, St. Botolph’s Crescent and Sincil
Bank sites. Finally a brand new site situated at Melbourne Road in Birchwood will see
this area enjoy an allotment site for the first time. As the capital programme is being
funded by the sale of the old Ermine allotment site, the scale and timing of these works
could be affected by the capital receipt for the sale of that site.

Following completion of the capital programme works, and as previously reported, a
revised allotment agreement coupled with a revised fees and charges structure will come
into place in 2019. Alongside this, a new strategy and development plan will be produce
to guide the allotments service over the next five years.

4.8 Equality and Diversity (moving to Reducing Inequality PH)

The council is required under the Public Sector Equality Duty to set at least one equality
objective every four years, as well as to publish equality information. The Equality and
Diversity Advisory Panel (previously Equality and Diversity Group) overseas this work,
and the Chair of the group provides a separate report to Council on its work.

Currently we have five objectives which were agreed by Council In April 2016 for a period
of four years to March 2020. The objectives are to ensure:

1. Our services are more accessible and do not discriminate on any unjustifiable
grounds.

2. Local communities and stakeholders are empowered to influence the way our
services are provided to them.

3. Equality and diversity is at the heart of decision making at all levels within the city

council.

Our workforce at all levels reflects the makeup of the local community.

Equalities, Social Inclusion and Community Cohesion have all improved within our

communities

S

These objectives are underpinned by an equality action plan monitored by the Equality
and Diversity Advisory Panel. In 2017/18 there were 20 actions, all of which were either
completed by the end of the year or planned to be ongoing into 2018/19. In addition it is
now a council requirement that an equality and diversity comment is included in all
reports for new policies and changes to services submitted to Executive, with equality
analyses undertaken and included where appropriate.

Our equality and diversity work is spread across three service areas; HR, legal and
corporate equality and diversity and a summary of all work undertaken on equality and
diversity actions is provided in the 2017 Equality Journal (in effect the council’s Equality
and Diversity Annual Report), together with equality information required to be published
under the Public Sector Equality Duty. The 2018 Equality Journal is due to be published
in September 2018.

20

48



5. KEY PH PERFORMANCE RESULTS up to Quarter 4 2017/18

(Some elements will be moving to other Portfolios as indicated above)

The summary table in Appendix 1 shows overall performance for the year is very good

From our Customer Services team - it is pleasing to report that the number of users who
logged into our self-service system Mylnfo increased again from 6,980 in Q4 last year to
9,865 in Q4 this year, matching almost exactly the drop we have seen in face to face
enquiries. We continue to actively push e billing wherever possible and whilst poor
weather conditions in February may have encouraged customers to have a go on-line, it
suggests they are now more aware of and active in using the system.

The Garden Waste service has been a significant area of on-line success. Looking at
2016-2017, Customer Service staff answered 8,500 calls to assist people signing up or
renewing their subscription. In 2017-2018 that figure has reduced to 4,700 phone calls
with the remainder being completed on-line. Customer Services and the Business
Development team are now assessing this success to see what lessons can be learned
and replicated in other service areas to encourage more automated transactions.

However as | said earlier, although we saw an increase in time taken to answer a call in
Customer Services in the last quarter of the year (with average times in Q4 reaching 104
seconds), this is not reflective of the rest of the year where we were within target times.
As the causes were very short lived we are expecting performance to recuperate in Q1.

Whilst the in-year collection rate for Lincoln Council Tax outturned at 97.17%, just above
its target of 97.11%, Lincoln Business Rates unfortunately saw a lower annual outturn
compared to that of last year, achieving 98.87%, a 0.56% decrease compared to
2017/18. This is due to a number of high value rateable values being brought in during
March 2018, resulting in the debt being raised with little or no time to collect it. Despite
this, the additional rateable values brought into the Valuation List totalled £750,950 which
is positive in terms of the overall base.

| do need to once again bring your attention to the average level of sickness days taken
by staff over the year, which has increased again on last year (see table below). The
overall year to date (YTD) sickness data as at the end of March is 13.62 days per FTE
(excl. apprentices). This is 2.1 days more per FTE compared to the same point last year.

As a result CMT continues to place a keen focus on this rise and has recently conducted
a Sickness Performance Clinic on Stress related sickness from which a number of
actions have been identified and are being followed up through HR. In addition HR are
pushing Global Challenge, with 196 staff taking part from 24t May in a 100 day virtual
journey towards a healthier lifestyle. This involves trying to complete 10,000 steps a day
and also monitors sleep and nutrition for each individual.

Cumulative sickness trends - CoLC (Excl. apprentices figures)

Year Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

2013/14 2.68 5.18 7.69 10.78
2014/15 2.99 6.68 9.93 13.43
2015/16 3.01 5.7 8.6 11.63
2016/17 2.43 5.10 8.27 11.52
2017/18 3.11 6.34 9.84 13.62

21

49



6. FUTURE CHALLENGES

As | observed in my last report it was Charles Darwin who said that it is not the strong or
even the cleverest who will succeed, but the most adaptable. So the key to the council's
success will | believe depend on its ability to understand and respond to the changes it
faces.

The council continues to make significant progress in improving the quality and standard
of its services.

The council continues to provide effective community leadership for the City and enjoys
high levels of public support and a good reputation with its stakeholders.

Considerable challenges remain. We will need to make the strongest possible case to
retain autonomous governance of the City, to maintain the progress we are making in our
crucial service provider role, and to secure long term financial sustainability.

We are however extremely well equipped to meet most challenges with highly committed
elected members and very many able and dedicated professional officers.

Following the completion of Phase One of Vision 2020, attention is now
focusing on planning the second phase of projects. Key projects are:

» Continuing to lead on the Western Growth Corridor site to unlock 3,200 homes and
20ha of commercial employment land.

* Working with partners such as Visit Lincoln to launch the ‘Invest Lincoln’ scheme.

+ Developing a local strategic response to the UK Industrial Strategy

» Undertaking a retail assessment to explore the requirements of a flagship retail offer.

+ Implementing a Market Strategy and action plan to transform City Square

* Delivering the approved recommendations from the citywide review into Inclusive
Growth in Lincoln.

» Supporting the increasing numbers of residents transitioning onto Universal Credit,
particularly in regard to provision of digital and budgeting support

* Proactively encouraging businesses in the city to embrace corporate social
responsibility, including payment of the Living Wage.

» Delivering the Empty Homes Strategy to bring increasing numbers of empty homes
back into use.

» Undertaking site works to De Wint Court which will see it transformed into an Extra
Care Facility.

*  Working with Waterloo Housing Group and Westleigh Developments Ltd. to see the
completion of housing sites across the city.

* Delivery of the Spa Road development site for up to 312 new homes.

« Building on the successes of the first phase of the Sincil Bank Regeneration Scheme,
to achieve long-term, physical transformation in this part of the city

» Refreshing the City Centre Masterplan to ensure an ambitious and co-ordinated plan
for the city centre.

+ Undertaking an outdoor play facilities project, and develop a longer-term view of
leisure facilities in the city through the creation of a new strategy.

* Undertaking a multi-agency response to challenges involving legal highs and city
centre vagrancy.

22

50



| would like to express my appreciation to the really excellent range of officers who
support me with the work of the Portfolio and to specifically say thank you to the following
officers for their assistance in the preparation of this report:

Sara Boothright, Claire Burroughs, Heather Carmichael, Simon Colburn, Jo Crookes,
Kate Fenn, Jaclyn Gibson, Heather Grover, Frances Jelly, Pat Jukes, Bruce Kelsey,

Becky Scott, John Scott, Matt Smith, Lara Trickett, Daren Turner, Martin Walmsley,
Steve Welsby, Mark Wheater and James Wilkinson.

Councillor Ric Metcalfe (Leader of the Council)
Portfolio Holder for People and Resources

23

51



A

6. Appendix 1

KEY PERFORMANCE RESULTS up to Q4 2017/18

We have a set of around 70 strategic measures that ensure the performance of our key services is monitored and reported regularly
through committee. In addition to this, the IMPS system still holds all other performance data accessible to all Members through a series of
dashboards in which further detail can be obtained whenever required. Those that feature in the quarterly reports from my portfolio are

shown below, plus others that are available through the IMPS performance system

Key annual measures

Measure description 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Status
DCT 6 Percentage of invoices paid within 30 days 95.38% 97.03% 95.17% Maintaining
DEM 8 | The number of individuals registered on the electoral register 62,552 66,862 61635 Maintaining
PRO 4 Percentage spend on contracts that have been awarded to local contractors | 41.1% 37.4% Available Q3 | Maintaining

For all measures the key is: Green = Improving performance; Amber = Maintaining Performance within expected boundaries; Red = Performance deteriorating (needs a

closer look)

We have no ‘red’ performance areas in the annual measures this year

24


http://colc-ten/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B4E24194F-2D6A-4150-91FA-57751150BE98%7D%26object%3DO9%3A2707%26type%3DOBJPAGE

€S

Key quarterly measures for the period 2017/18

Measure description Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Status
2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2017/18 | 2017/18 | 2017/18

WBL5 | Percentage of apprentices completing on time 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% Maintaining

WBL6 | Number of new starters on apprenticeships 9 6 18 17 5 Maintaining

WBLY7 | % Apprentices moving onto education, employment or training | 100% 100% 100% 100% 75%

WBLS8 | Number of early leavers 5 4 1 0 1 Maintaining

WBL9 | Employers/supervisors rating the WBL team as good/very | 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% Maintaining
good

CS4 Number of face to face enquiries 12768 12886 12123 10388 9826 Improving

CS5 | Number of telephone enquiries answered 36019 38188 36317 32102 33254

CS6 Number of users logged into the self-serve system My-info this | 6980 6516 6059 6409 9865 Improving
quarter

CS8 | Average time taken to answer a call to customer services 28 57 62 49 104 Deteriorating

HUS5 | Number of grievances 1 0 1 1 0 Maintaining

HUG6 | Number of disciplinaries 7 0 4 2 0 Maintaining

ACCS8 | Average return on investment portfolio 0.62% 0.31% 0.31% 0.53% 0.67% Maintaining

ACC9 | Average interest rate on external borrowing 4.07% 4.07% 4.07% 4.07% 3.9% Maintaining

REV4 | Council tax — in year collection rate for Lincoln 97.09% | 27.00% |53.17% 79.77 97.17% Maintaining

REV5 | Business tax — in year collection rate for Lincoln 99.43% |35.83% |61.13% |86.43% |98.87%

REV6 | Level of outstanding customer changes in the revenues team | 296 503 624 80 121 Improving

BE4 Average (YTD) days to process new housing benefit claims | 29.44 23.06 23.24 23.73 24.29 Maintaining
from date received

BES | Average (YTD) days to process housing benefit claims change | 4.49 5.38 7.62 7.93 4.00 Maintaining
of circumstances from date received

BEG6 Number of Housing Benefit/Council Tax support customers | 646 577 810 556 696 Maintaining
awaiting assessment

BE7 Percentage of risk based quality checks made where Benefit | 91% 91% 91% 91% 92% Maintaining
entitlement is correct

BE8 | The number of new benefit claims YTD (Housing benefit/CT | 7138 1813 3731 5513 7296 Maintaining
support) (Year on year)

AM 8 | Percentage occupancy of allotment plots 82.3% 82.2% 82.87% 82.5% 80.1% Maintaining

For all measures the key is: Green = Improving performance; Amber = Maintaining performance within expected boundaries; Red = Performance deteriorating (needs a

closer look)

25


http://colc-ten/tenweb/tenweb.dll?model%3D%7B4E24194F-2D6A-4150-91FA-57751150BE98%7D%26object%3DO9%3A1815%26type%3DOBJPAGE

This page is intentionally blank.



[tem No. 5

PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 12 JULY 2018
SUBJECT: THEMATIC REVIEW - HOMELESSNESS
DIRECTORATE: HOUSING AND REGENERATION

REPORT AUTHOR: YVONNE FOX — ASSISTANT DIRECTOR OF HOUSING

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Purpose of Report

To provide Performance Scrutiny Committee with information relating to the
provision of homelessness services following the enactment of the Homelessness
Reduction Act 2017 on the 3™ April 2018

To inform Members of the successful bid from the Rough Sleeper Fund to reduce
and prevent rough sleeping in the City Centre

Executive Summary

The Homelessness Reduction Act places new duties on English Councils so that
everyone who is homeless or threatened with homelessness will have access to
meaningful help, irrespective of their priority need status or local connection to the
authority they approach.

Several new duties are introduced including:
e Duty to assess all eligible applicants cases and agree a Personal Plan
e The Prevention Duty: in cases of threatened homelessness
e The Relief Duty: in cases where the applicant is homeless

In addition, there are new duties on Public Authorities; the Public duty to refer, and
on applicants. Any applicant who fails to co-operate may mean that they cease to
be eligible for further assistance

At present, Local Authorities are unable to predict what the impact of the new
legislation may have. The Ministry for Housing, Communities and Local
Government (MHCLG), have created a new Homelessness Advice and Support
Team (HAST) comprising of national, senior homelessness professionals. This
team provides advice and support to all local authorities and we have received
several visits from the HAST advisor for the East Midlands since March this year.

The Government acknowledges that rough sleeping has increased across the
country over recent years. As a result the MHCLG has provided £30m of funding
to the 83 Councils that have the highest numbers of rough sleepers.

The City of Lincoln was invited to bid for funding and a comprehensive bid to
address the rough sleeping problems in Lincoln was submitted.

55




2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

The Council has been successful in their bid and has received £376,747 for the
remainder of the financial year, 2018/19. We have been invited to bid for further
funding for 2019/20 and the bid was submitted as requested on the 28t June
2018. A decision on this bid should be made by the 16t July.

Homelessness Reduction Act 2017

As mentioned, the Homelessness Reduction Act places new duties on English
Councils so that everyone who is homeless or threatened with homelessness will
have access to meaningful help, irrespective of their priority need status or local
connection to the authority they approach.

The definition of homeless or threatened with homelessness has also been
changed. The Act extends the number of days before a person becomes
threatened with homelessness from 28 to 56 days.

This change has been introduced to enable people to apply for help and advice at
an earlier stage and to give the local authority time to prevent homelessness or
give advice to enable the applicant to secure alternative accommodation

The Duty to provide advisory services requires the authority to provide advice on:
Preventing homelessness,

Securing accommodation,

Advice on legal rights

Any help that is available from other agencies for example, debt advice

If a local authority believes that a person is homelessness or threatened with
homelessness in 56 days and is eligible for assistance, the prevention duty is
triggered and the council has a duty to assess every applicants circumstances and
housing and support needs and reach an agreement with the applicant on a
personalised plan which sets out what the authority will do and what the applicant
must do to ensure accommodation is secured or retained.

If a person is or becomes homeless, then the relief duty is triggered and will
continue for up to 56 days. The council has a duty to help all homeless applicants
to secure accommodation for at least 6 months, if they have a local connection
with the authority. If not, their case will be referred to the relevant authority to
progress. It is important to note that it expected that the majority of applicants
owed a relief duty to secure accommodation will be helped to secure private
rented accommodation.

If an applicant fails to cooperate with the council in order to prevent their
homelessness or secure accommodation then the council can serve a notice on
the applicant explaining the consequence of continued non-cooperation. As a
consequence of non-cooperation, the council could choose to decide that the
person is no longer eligible for assistance.

On October 15t 2018, the Duty to Refer will be introduced which requires a number

of public bodies to notify the council if they are working with someone who is
homeless or threatened with homelessness

56



4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.0

6.1

Current Position — Homelessness Reduction Act

A significant amount of work was required by local authorities to be ready for the
new duties which came in to effect in April. The Housing Solutions Team has
received specialist training to assist them and, following a visit in May by our
Homelessness Advisor, we are statutorily compliant with the new Act.

At this stage, it is difficult to predict what the impact of the Act will have. It is
predicted that homelessness applications will increase by 25% but acceptances
will reduce and the use of temporary accommodation will reduce. The team have
noted an increase in applications since April of around 10%, the majority of these
are single people who the authority would previously not have had any duties
other than the provision of advice and assistance.

Rough Sleeping in Lincoln

As Members are aware, rough sleeping has become more visible particularly in
Lincoln City Centre over the last 2 years. Lincoln is a ‘magnet’, particularly for
single people, who gravitate towards the City. Despite the City having a
nightshelter, supported accommodation and a street outreach team, numbers
continue to rise and at the moment, around 30 people sleep rough in Lincoln each
night.

The Lincoln Business Community (Lincoln BIG) have been working with the
Council and have launched a diverted giving scheme to encourage people to give
donations to a fund which will be used to help and support rough sleepers, rather
than to give to people who are begging on the streets and who may actually not be
rough sleeping.

The Council has also successfully bid for £376,747 of funding to target rough
sleeping and prevent the flow of new rough sleepers on to our streets. The funding
will provide:
¢ A new Rough Sleeper Team working alongside the Council’s Housing
Options Team
¢ An additional street outreach worker and specialist Addiction and Recovery
nurse and a mental health nurse
e Funding to open the nightshelter for several hours during the day time
which will mean that people do not have go back on to the streets at 8am
e Funding to recommission the Cornerhouse project for entrenched rough
sleepers who have high support needs

This funding will make a huge impact on rough sleeping in Lincoln and will
positively assist those people who are sleeping rough to secure accommodation
which is right for their needs with the support that they need.

Organisational Impacts

Finance - the impact of the extended duties are as yet, unknown. It is anticipated

that the use of temporary accommodation will reduce but additional staffing may
be required for which resources would need to be identified from existing budgets.

57



6.2

Legal Implications - the council is fully compliant with the provisions of the
Homelessness Reduction Act

6.5 Equality, Diversity & Human Rights — the Council is compliant with all
requirements

7. Risk Implications -not applicable

8. Recommendation

8.1 For Members to note the contents of the report and to receive an updated report
on the first year post-introduction of the Act and outcomes of the Rough Sleeper
initiatives.

Is this a key decision? No

Do the exempt information No

categories apply?

Does Rule 15 of the Scrutiny No
Procedure Rules (call-in and

urgency) apply?

How many appendices does none
the report contain?

List of Background Papers: None

Lead Officer: Yvonne Fox, Assistant Director of Housing

Telephone (01522) 873716

58



[tem No. 6

PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 12 JULY 2018

SUBJECT:

DIRECTORATE: DIRECTORATE OF COMMUNITIES AND ENVIRONMENT

REPORT AUTHOR: SIMON COLBURN, ASSISTANT DIRECTOR

CHRISTMAS MARKET OUTTURN REPORT 2017/18

11

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

3.2

Purpose of Report

To provide Performance Scrutiny Committee with the key financial
performance in relation to the 2017 Lincoln Christmas Market.

Executive Summary

This report considers the final outturn financial position of the 2017 Lincoln
Christmas Market as of July 2018. The report outlines Lincoln Christmas
Market operational and budget matters. This follows from a brief report in
November 2017and a verbal report following the event in January 2018.

The total direct expenditure for the 2017 market was £552,039 against
expenditure budget of £487,080, an overspend of £64,959.

The income received was £611,745 against an income budget target of
£602,970, an over achievement of £8,775.

Core staffing costs amounted to £113,456 against an expenditure budget of
£124,550, an underspend of £11,094.

Overall the 2017 market produced a loss of £53,750 which was £45,090
higher than the budgeted £8,660 cost to the authority.

Background

Lincoln Christmas Market is held annually for 4 days in uphill Lincoln during
the 15t weekend in December. Last year's event was Thursday 7t
December to Saturday 9" December 2017 due to the final day’s cancelation.
It is estimated that over 200,000 people visited over 3 days.

According to the 2016 visitor survey carried out by the University of Lincoln
on our behalf total visitor spend has been estimated as in the region of £14
million with the estimated economic value to the City of £2.65 million. It also
concluded that over 60% of visitors travel to the City for the market.

59



4.1

4.2

5.1

5.2

Key influencing factors affecting the final outturn of the market

The weather the previous year (2016) was ideal from an organiser’'s
perspective —cold but sunny and the market budget outturn reflected that,
being one of the most successful markets the authority has organised.
Unfortunately the weather in 2017 was not as favourable. Like many other
areas of the country weather warnings were issued. The market did not take
place on the planned final day as discussed at length at a previous
Performance Scrutiny Committee meeting. The decision made on Saturday
evening meant breakdown of the event commenced around 24 hours earlier
than planned, which had an adverse impact on both costs and income within
the final account now presented to committee.

In addition, following a number of terrorist attacks in crowded places which
occurred in early 2017, the national threat level remained at “Severe” in the
months prior to the event. As for many other events up and down the
country, additional police and extra security measures including the use of
controlled vehicle access points at the event much of which was new for
2017 resulted in a significant increase in police and security costs.

2017/18 Outturn
The overall financial position of the 2017 Lincoln Christmas Market is
attached as appendix A and referred to throughout the report.

Income

The market has 3 main streams of income,
e stallholder fees,
e park and ride ticket sales and
e coach bookings

Stall Holder Income

The 2017 market had 200 stalls achieving an income of £415,347. Income
generated from stallholder fees was therefore slightly above the budget.
Although not included above, income from the fairground was £28,741,
which was also above budget due to an extra ride attending.

The City Council did come under some pressure post event to partially
refund stall holder fees. However, the council resisted this as the terms of
conditions for stall holders made clear this is an outdoor event in winter and
hence subject to adverse weather. As such stall holders are advised to take
out their own insurance to cover for situations where cancellation occurs. As
can be seen from the budget, had the City Council been required to refund,
this would make the market unsustainable and arguably at a financial risk
level that would put the market in doubt in future years. It is worth noting that
the first three days of trading at the 2017 market were busy for many stall
holders.

60



5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

Park and Ride Income

Park and Ride which operated from the Lincolnshire Showground was used
by:

-1025 cars on Thursday

-1603 cars on Friday

-2567 on Saturday

The achieved an income of £78,513. The cancellation on the Sunday had a
significant impact on income generated with an underachievement against
budget of £48,197. Traditionally Sunday has seen high use of the service.

In 2016 the negative perception of traffic congestion and parking availability
in the city centre combined with strong and coordinated promotion of the
park and rid. This resulted in high use which had not been anticipated would
occur in 2017. The new city centre multi-storey car park continued to see
additional use during the period of the market which is likely to have had
some impact upon the use of the park and ride service, in particular by those
visitor who live locally.

Coach Parking Income

As in previous years coach bookings have continued to reduce. Coach
parking is operated from Waitrose car park on Thursday and RAF Scampton
from Friday to Sunday. A total of 223 coaches booked to attend the 2017
market compared to 268 coaches attending in 2016 and 290 coaches in
2015. In addition, 59 of last year’s bookings had to be cancelled as they
were due to attend on the Sunday but could not. Total income received was
£13,786 a shortfall to budget of £12,754.

Reductions in coach trips to events such as these would appear to be a
general national trend as consumers prefer not to book such trips
significantly in advance. Officers are developing a marketing plan for
coaches to the 2018 event.

Expenditure
The most significant items of expenditure are
e Staff costs
e Venue hire costs;
e Contractor payments including Policing and security costs.

The market hires a number of venues including Lincoln Castle, Lincolnshire
Showground and RAF Scampton, Total costs of venue hire was £49,666.
Venue hire was slightly higher because inflation was higher than budgeted.

Staff costs cover the staff that contribute to the event planning and the 40 or
so City Council staff that contribute to the safe and effective running over the
actual market period and include those carrying out roles such as event
office staff, zone supervisors, loggists, CCTV and Environmental Health.
Staff costs were lower because of staff maternity leave from the core
planning team.

Contractors

The contractor costs were £432,586 compared with the budget of £411,090.
This is a projected overspend of £21,496.

61



5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

6.1

6.2

The main cause for a substantial increase in contractor costs was due to the
police costs having risen significantly by £21,280 compared to the 2016
market as well as an additional estimated £9,000 on costs associated with
vehicle access control measures. Working with counter terrorism police
additional security measures included armed police officers and vehicle
bastions, barriers and vehicles (used as road blocks) installed across the
market to prevent unwanted vehicle access during the market opening
hours. This was in light of the then recent terrorist attacks using vehicles as
a weapon including the Berlin Christmas Market in 2016 and those in
London earlier in 2017.

In addition to these security costs the Police requested an offsite ‘shadow
Silver control’ was provided in 2017. This was in addition to the existing
market event control which is staffed throughout the event. The staff
expertise to staff two event controls meant that an additional Event
Commander was contracted. It is believed that this will not be required for
2018 market as it is expected that the newly appointed Assistant Directors
will fulfil this role if following a de-brief it is considered a shadow silver
control is still required..

Whilst officers had hoped that the new city centre crime surveillance CCTV
would be suitable for the 2017 event, this has not proved possible. The
installation of CCTV by the existing market contractor was necessary to
ensure the safe running of the event. This cost was an additional
unbudgeted £11k.

Overall performance

The outturn report demonstrates a loss of £53,750 which is £45,090 more
than the budgeted cost to the authority of £8,660 for the 2017 market due to
the reasons detailed above.

Strategic Priorities

Let’s drive economic growth

Lincoln Christmas Market has continued to bring in the region of £14 million
spend into the local economy. However in recent years the market has not
met the targets set out in the MTFS, but the model of the Christmas market is
essentially a sound one and as such the City Council remains committed to
deliver the market over the four day period in future years. However, it is
clear that the market does need to develop to remain the premiere Christmas
event. Officers are in the early stages of working with a range of stakeholders
to undertake a Visioning and Development Plan for the next 10 years which
will see the market evolve and become a festival of Christmas in a wider
cultural experience sense. Officers also continue to work on a contract for
sponsorship

Let’'s enhance our remarkable place

Lincoln Christmas Market continues to be Lincoln flagship annual event with
250-300,000 visitors over just 4 days. Last year it was awarded best UK
Festive Market by Holiday lettings. Officers are exploring additional options to
continue to attract visitors to the event and support visits to the City

62



throughout other times of the year.

7. Organisational Impacts
7.1 Finance

The full cost of running the 2017 Lincoln Christmas Market was £53,750
which, due to the factors outlined within the report, was £45,090 higher than
the anticipated cost of running the event.

A summarised breakdown of income and expenditure is included below, with
further detail provided within appendix A to this report.

Budget Actual .
201718 2017 Variance
£ £ £
External Costs 487,080 552,039 64,959
External Income (602,970) (611,745) (8,775)
Direct external costs & income (115,890) (59,706) 56,184
Core staffing costs 124,550 113,456 (11,094)
Full impact on Medium Term
Financial Strategy 8,660 53,750 45,090
7.2 Legal Implications including Procurement Rules

There are no legal implications arising from this report’

8. Recommendation

8.1 That members note the contents of the report.

Is this a key decision? No

Do the exempt information No
categories apply?

Does Rule 15 of the Scrutiny No
Procedure Rules (call-in and

urgency) apply?

How many appendices does One
the report contain?

List of Background Papers: None

Lead Officer: Claire McDowall,
Principal Events and Culture Officer
01522 873540

63



This page is intentionally blank.



XMAS MARKET 2017 - PSC REPORT JULY 2018 - FINAL OUT TURN

July 2018 PSC

q9

Budget Actual .
Type Account Code Name 2017/18 2017/18 Variance
£ £ £

PREMISES Premises Costs 2,550 2,712 162
SUPPSERV  Supplies & Services 9,790 11,087 1,297
VENUE HIRE Venue Hire 47,000 49,666 2,666
INSURANCE Event Insurance 7,650 7,238 (412)
CONTRACT Contractor Payments 411,090 432,586 21,496
SECURITY Security Costs 9,000 48,750 39,750
INCOME Re-imbursements 0 (43,568) (43,568)
INCOME Contributions (4,000) (4,400) (400)
INCOME Event Income (16,770) (27,390) (10,620)

Fees and charges:
INCOME Stall Holder Income (411,760) (415,347) (3,587)
INCOME Park & Ride (126,710) (78,513) 48,197
INCOME Coach Parking (26,540) (13,786) 12,754
INCOME Fairground Income (17,190) (28,741) (11,551)

Direct external costs & income (115,890) (59,706) 56,184
EMPLOYEE Core staffing costs 124,550 113,456 (11,094)

Full Impact on MTFS 8,660 53,750 45,090




This page is intentionally blank.



[tem No. 7

PEFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 12 JULY 2018
SUBJECT: WORK PROGRAMME FOR 2018/19
REPORT BY: CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND TOWN CLERK

LEAD OFFICER: GRAHAM WATTS, DEMOCRATIC TEAM LEADER AND

ELECTIONS MANAGER

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To present members with the Performance Scrutiny Committee work programme
for 2018/19 (Appendix A).

2. Background

2.1 The work programme for the Performance Scrutiny Committee is put forward
annually for approval by Council. The work programme is then regularly updated
throughout the year in consultation with the Performance Scrutiny Committee
and its chair.

2.2 ltems have been scheduled in accordance with the existing work programme
and officers’ guidance regarding the meetings at which the most up-to-date
information can be reported to the committee.

2.3  The work programme includes the list of portfolio holders under scrutiny.

3. Recommendation

3.1 That members offer any relevant comments or changes on the proposed work
programme.

Key Decision No

Do the Exempt Information Categories No

Apply

Call In and Urgency: Is the decision one
to which Rule 15 of the Scrutiny No
Procedure Rules apply?

Does the report contain Appendices? Yes
If Yes, how many Appendices? 1
Lead Officer: Graham Watts, Democratic Services Team

Leader and Elections Manager
Telephone 873439

67




This page is intentionally blank.



69

Performance Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2018-19

24 May 2018 (Monitoring Overview)

Standard Items

Responsible

Person(s)

APPENDIX A

Vision 2020 Strategic Priority/
Comments

Confirmation of Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee Members Democratic Regular.Report . .
Servi Lets Deliver Quality Housing
ervices
Work Programme for 2018-19 — Update Democratic Regular Report
Services
Monitoring Items
Financial Performance (Detailed): Outturn 2017/18 Quarter 4 Rob Baxter Quarterly Report Professional
High Performing Services
Performance Monitoring Outturn 2017/18 Quarter 4 Pat Jukes Quarterly Report-Professional
High Performing Services
Treasury Management Stewardship and Actual Prudential Indicators Report | Rob Baxter Six Monthly Report Professional
2017/18 (Outturn) High Performing Services
Strategic Plan Progress Quarter 4 2017-18 Rob Baxter Quarterly Report Professional
High Performing Services
Strategic Risk Register — Quarterly Report Rob Baxter Quarterly Report Professional

High Performing Services

Central Lincolnshire Local Plan Annual Report 2017/18 including Financial
Update

Toby Forbes-
Turner

Annual Report Lets Drive
Economic Growth

Corporate Performance Targets

Pat Jukes

Report-Professional High
Performing Services




0L

12 July 2018

Responsible

Person(s)

Strategic Priority/ Comments

Standard Items

Confirmation of Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee Minutes

Democratic Services

Regular Report
Lets Deliver Quality Housing

Work Programme for 2018-19 — Update

Democratic Services

Regular Report

Portfolio Performance Overview

Pat Jukes

Regular Report

Professional High Performing
Services

Portfolio Under Scrutiny Session — Our People and Resources

Portfolio Holder

Annual Session

Professional High Performing
Services

Monitoring Item(s)

Thematic Review - Homelessness

Yvonne Fox/Alison
Timmins

Review Report
Lets Deliver

Quality Housing

Christmas Market Outturn Report 2017

Simon Colburn

Annual Report Lets Drive
Economic Growth




T,

23 August 2018 (Monitoring Overview)

Standard Items

Responsible

Person(s)

Strategic Priority/ Comments

City of Lincoln Council Annual Report 2018

James Wilkinson

Confirmation of Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee Minutes Democratic Services Regular_Report : .
Lets Deliver Quality Housing
Work Programme for 2018-19 Democratic Services Regular Report
Regular Report

Monitoring Items

Quarterly Report

Financial Performance (Detailed) — Quarterly Monitoring: Quarter 1 Rob Baxter Professional High Performing
Services

Performance Quarterly Monitoring: Quarter 1 Pat Jukes Quarterly Report
Professional High Performing
Services

Quarterly Strategic Risk Register Report-Quarter1 Rob Baxter Quarterly Report

Professional High Performing
Services

Revenues and Benefits Shared Service Update

Claire Moses

Annual Report
Professional High Performing
Services

Income/Arrears Monitoring report

Claire Moses

Annual Report
Professional High Performing
Services




L

4 October 2018 (Thematic Reviews

Standard Items

Responsible Person(s)

Strategic Priority/ Comments

Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee Minutes Democratic Services Regular_Report
Lets Deliver
Quality Housing

Work Programme for 2018-19 — Update Democratic Services Regular Report

Portfolio Performance Overview Pat Jukes Regular Report

Lets Drive Economic Growth

Portfolio Under Scrutiny Session — Economic Growth

Portfolio Holder

Annual Session
Lets Drive Economic Growth

Economic Growth Vision 2020 Progress Report Kate Ellis Regular Report

Lets Drive Economic Growth
Monitoring Items
City of Lincoln Profile Pat Jukes Annual Report

Lets Reduce Inequality

Scrutiny Annual Report

Democratic Services

Annual Report

Professional High Performing
Services

Other Item(s)

Christmas Market Stalls/Budget — Brief pre event report

Simon Colburn

Requested
Lets Drive Economic Growth




€L

22 November 2018 (Monitoring Overview

Standard Items

Responsible

Person(s)

Strategic Priority/ Comments

Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee Minutes ggxiocc;;atic ﬁeetgul_l)aerlil\:\/):rpgfjality Housing
Work Programme for 2018-19 — Update Democratic Regular Report

Services
Portfolio Performance Overview Pat Jukes Regular Report

Lets Reduce Inequality

Portfolio Under Scrutiny Session — Reducing Inequality

Portfolio Holder

Annual Session
Lets Reduce Inequality

Reduce Inequality Vision 2020 Progress Report

Angela Andrews

Regular Report
Lets Reduce Inequality

Monitoring Items

Financial Performance (Detailed) — Quarterly Monitoring: Quarter 2 Rob Baxter Quarterly Report
Professional High Performing Services
Performance Quarterly Monitoring: Quarter 2 Pat Jukes Quarterly Report
Professional High Performing Services
Strategic Risk Register — Quarterly Report Quarter 2 Rob Baxter Quarterly Report
Professional High Performing Services
Services
Treasury Management and Prudential Code Update Report — Half Rob Baxter Half Yearly Report
Yearly Report Professional High Performing Services
Other item(s)
Budget Theme Group — Nominees- Rob Baxter Annual Appointment Professional High

Performing Services




122

24 January 2019

Standard Items

Responsible Person(s)

Strategic Priority/ Comments

, : i : , . : Regular Report
Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee Minutes Democratic Services Lets Deliver Quality Housing
Work Programme for 2018-19 - Update Democratic Services Regular Report
Portfolio Performance Overview Pat Jukes Regular Report

Lets Deliver Quality Housing

Portfolio Under Scrutiny Session — Quality Housing

Portfolio Holder

Annual Session
Lets Deliver Quality Housing

Quiality Housing Vision 2020 Progress Report

B Ledger

Lets Deliver Quality Housing

Monitoring Item(s)

Christmas Market Outturn 2018- Update

Simon Colburn

Pre Annual Report
Lets Drive Economic Growth

Performance Report-HRS

Paula Burton

Annual Report
Lets Deliver Quality Housing

Section 106 Contributions Update

Nicola Collins

Annual Report
Lets Drive Economic Growth




Gl

Responsible

Person(s)

Strategic Priority/ Comments

Standard Items

Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee Minutes

Democratic Services

Regular Report
Lets Deliver Quality Housing

Work Programme for 2018-19 - Update

Democratic Services

Regular Report

Portfolio Performance Overview

Pat Jukes

Regular Report
Lets Enhance Our Remarkable
Place

Portfolio Under Scrutiny Session — Remarkable Place

Portfolio Holder

Annual Session
Lets Enhance Our Remarkable
Place

Remarkable Place Vision 2020 Progress Report

Simon Walters

Regular Report
Lets Enhance Our Remarkable
Place

Monitoring Items

Financial Performance (Detailed) — Quarterly Monitoring: Quarter 3

Rob Baxter

Quarterly Report
Professional High Performing
Services

Performance Quarterly Monitoring: Quarter 3

Pat Jukes

Quarterly Report
Professional High Performing
Services

Strategic Risk Register — Quarterly Report Quarter 3

Rob Baxter

Quarterly Report
Professional High Performing
Services

Feedback from Budget Review Group

Rob Baxter

Annual Report
Professional High Performing
Services




9.

28 March 2019

Responsible

Person(s)

Strategic Priority/ Comments

Standard Items

Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee Minutes

Democratic Services

Regular Report Lets Deliver
Quality Housing

Draft Work Programme for 2019/20

Democratic Services

Regular Report

Portfolio Performance Overview

Pat Jukes

Regular Report
Vision 2020 (Mixed)

Portfolio Under Scrutiny Session — Customer Experience and Review

Portfolio Holder

Annual Session
Vision 2020 (Mixed)

High Performing Services Vision 2020 Progress Report

Angela Andrews

Annual Progress Report
Professional High Performing
Services

Other item(s)

Christmas Market 2018 Outturn Report

Simon Colburn

Annual Report
Lets Drive Economic Growth




L)

Portfolio Under Scrutiny Sessions

Date

Portfolio

12 July 2018

Our People and Resources

4 October 2018

Economic Growth

22 November 2018

Reducing Inequality

25 January 2019

Housing

24 February 2019

Remarkable Place

28 March 2019

Customer Experience and Review




This page is intentionally blank.



	Agenda
	1 Confirmation of Minutes - 24 May 2018
	2 Confirmation of Housing Scrutiny Sub-Committee Minutes - 18 June 2018
	4a Portfolio Performance Overview
	4b Portfolio Under Scrutiny Session - Our People and Resources
	5 Thematic Review - Homelessness
	6 Christmas Market Outturn Report 2017
	Christmas Market Outturn Appendix

	7 Work Programme for 2018/19 - Update
	Work Programme


